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StarF SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

In accordance with section 4(b)(1), of Public Law 98-621, the St.
Elizabeths Hospital and District of Columbia Mental Health Serv-
ices Act, the Subcommittee on Fiscal Affairs and Health of the
Committee on the District of Columbia held oversight hearings on
the progress being made toward the implementation of the afore-
mentioned law. The subcommittee took oral and written testimony
from a wide range of witnesses regarding the District’s ability to
carry out the legislative mandate of having in place by October
1991, a comprehensive mental health care system of which St. Eliz-
abeths Hospital is an integral part. Central to the legislation was
the court mandated Dixon implementation plan, which called for
the outr.iacing of St. Elizabeths Hospital patients into community
facilities in an orderly and timely manner. The plan, the result of a
class-action suit brought on behalf of Mr. Dixon and other St. Eliza-
beths Hospital patients, is called for in section 4(b)X4) of Public Law
98-621. The committee is determining compliance with Public Law
98-621. Of particular concern to the representative of the Dixon
Plan Monitoring Committee, was the District’s ability to carry out
the legislative mandate and their willingness to correct those areas
not now in compliance with the Dixon plan as decreed by Judge
Robinson. While the representatives from the District testified that
there were certain areas of the comprehensive plan which could be
amended, they felt that the overall plan w=s sound and could be
implemented as submitted to the Congress.

The committee staff examination of the plan concludes that it
does satisfy the legislative mandate both in form and in order and
in the timetable set for the completion of the St. Elizabeths Hospi-
tal transfer process. Those areas of concern expressed by hearing
witnesses will continue to be problem areas until the new system is
in place. It is the opinion of the committee staff that the areas of
concern can be corrected by the District Mental Health. Reorganiza-
tion Office, if an all out concerted effort is begun. However, the
effort must begin now and should include the representatives from
those agencies expressing disapproval of the plan as presented at
the hearing.
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PUBLIC LAW 98-621, THE ST. ELIZABETHS HOS-

PITAL AND DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES ACT

THURSDAY, MAY 22, 1986

Housg ov REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON F18CAL AFFAIRS AND HEALTH,
COMMITTEE ON THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 a.m., in room
1310, Longworth House Office Building, Hon. Walter E. Fauntroy
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representative Fauntroy.

Also present: Edward C. Sylvester, Jr., staff director; Ronald C.
Willis, staff assistant; Johnny Barnes, senior staff counsel; Stephanie
White, minority scaff counsel; and Shahid Z. Abdullah, minority
staff assistant.

[The text of Pubic Law 98-621 follows:]

1)



PUBLIC LAW 98-621—NOV. 8, 1984 98 STAT. 3369

Public Law 98-621
98th Congress

Be it enacted Zy the Sena’e and House of Representatives of the
United States of America in Cungress assembled,

BHORT TITLE

SecrioN 1. This Act m&be cited as the “Saint Elizabeths Hoepital g

and District of Columbia Mental Health Services Act”.
FINDINGS AND PURPOSES

Skc. 2. (a) The Congress makes the following findi;
(1) Governmentally administered mental m services in
the District of Columbia are currently provided through two
separate public entities, the federally administerod Saint Eliza-
beths Hospital and the Mental Health Services Administration
of the District of Columbia Department of Human Resources.
(2) The District of Columbia has a continuing responsibility to
provide mental health services to its residents.

{3) The Federal Government, through its operation of a na-
tional mental health program at Saint Elizabeths Hoepital, has
for over 100 years assisied the District of Columbia in carrying
out that responsikility.

(4) Since 1ts establishment by Congress in 1855, Saint Eliza-
Yeths Floepits! has developed into a re?ected national mental
aealth hospital and study, training, and treatment center, pro-
yrd}nsi:srange of quality mental health and related services,
including—

(i) acute and chronic inpatient peychiatric care;

(i) outpatient psychiatric and substance abuse clinical
and related services;

(iii) Federal court system forensic psychiatry referral,
evaluation, and patient treatment services for prisoners,
and for individ awaiting trial or requiring post-trial or
post-sentence psychiatric evaluation;

(iv) patient care and related services for designated
classes of individuals entitled to mental health benefits
under Federal law, such as certain members and employees
of the United States Armad Forces and the Foreign ice,
and residents of American overseas dependencies;

(v) District of Columbia court system forensic psychiatry
referral, \év?_luntigx:. ?’nd tient tg;ahgent services for pris-
oners, and for indivi awaiting trial or requiring post-
trial or post-sentence psychiatric evaluation;
ill(c‘in;)a‘t)'w for special populations such as the mentally

51-139 0 -~ 85 (675)



98 STAT. 3370 PUBLIC LAW 98-621—NOV. 8, 1984

(vii) support for basic and applied clinical peychiatric
research und related patient services condu by the
Na;iond Institute of Mental Health and other institutions;
an

(viii) professicnal and paraprofeseional training in the
major mental health disciplines.

.(5) The continuation of the range of services currently pro-
vided by federally administered Saint Elizabeths Hospital must
be assured, as these services are integrally related to—

(i) the availability of adequate mental health services to
District of Columbia residents, nonresidents who require
mental health services while in the District of Columbis,
individuals entitled to mental health services under Fed.
era.lrtlaw. and mdi‘;riduals referred by both Federal and local
cou ; &N

(i) the Nation's capatity to increase our knowledge arnd
understanding about mental illness and to facilitate and

. continue the development and broad availability of v-nd
and modern methods and approaches for the trcatmen, of

mental illness. .

(6) The assumption of all or selected functions, programs, and

- resources of Saint Elizabeths Hospital fron; the Federal Goverz -
ment by the District of Columbia, and the integration of those
functions, resources, and programs into_ a comprehensive
mental health care system administered solely by the District of

Columbia, will improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the

services currently provided through those two separate entities

by shi the priimary focus of care to an integrated commu-

nity-| system.
Home rule. (% Such assumption of all or selected functions, Bmyograms.
and resources of gmn t Elizabeths Hoepital by the District of
Columbia would further the principle of home rule for the
District of Columbia,
(b) It is the intent of Congress that—

(1) the District of Columbia have in operation no later than
October 1, 1991, an integreted coordinated mental health
syster: in tne District which provides—

(A) high 7uality. cost-effective, and community-based pro-
grams and facilities; _ .

(B) a continaum of inpatient and outpatient mental

eal , residential treatment, and suppurt services
through an appropriate balance of public and private re-
sources; and

(C) assurances that patient rights and medical needs are

pro 3

. (2) the comprehensive District mental health care m be

in full compliance with the Federal court consent decree in

Dixon v. Heckler; .

(3) the District and Federal Governments bear equitable

shares of the costs of a transition from the present system to a

comprehensive District mental health system;
Emdploym”t (4) the transition to a comprehensive District mental health
an system provided for by this Act be carried out with maximum
cansideration for the interests of employees of the Hospital and
provide a right-of-first-refusal to such employees for employ-
ment at comparable levels in positions created under the system
impiementation plan;

unemployment.




. PUBLIC LAW 98-621-—NOV. 8, 1984 98 STAT. 3371

(6) the Federal Government have the responsibility for the Employment
retraining of Hospital employees to prepare such employees for and : N
the requirerents of empfoyment in a comprehensive Diatrict “rempioymen
mental health system;

(6) the Federal Government continue high quality mental Rescarch and
health research, training, and demonstration programs at Saint development.
Elizabeths Hospital; L. .

(7) the District government establish and maintain accredita-
tion and licensing standards for all services provide in District
mental health facilities which assure quality care consistent
with apﬂrggriate Federal regulations and com le with
m ¢ the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospi-

; an

(8) tiha comprehensive mental health system plan include a

component for direct services for the homeless mentally ill.

DEFINITIONS

Skc. 3. For the purpoee of this Act: 24 USC 225a,

(1) The term “Hospital” means the institution in the District
of Coiumbia known as Saint Elizabeths Hospital operated on
the date of the enactment of this Act by the Secretary of Health

. and Human Services.

(2) The term “Secretary” means the Secretary of Health and
Human Services. '

(3) The term “Mayor” means the Mayor of the District of
Columbia. .

(4) The term “Distr.ct” means the District of Columbia.

(5) The term “Federal court consent decree” means the con-
sent decree in Dixon v. Heckler, Civil Action No. 74-285. .

(6) The term “service coordination period” means a period
beginning on the effective date of this Act and terminating on
October 1, 1987. .

(7) The term “financial transition period” means a period
beginning on the effective date of this Act and terminating on
October 1, 1991.

(8) The term “system implementation plan” means the plan
for a comprehensive mental health system for the District of
Columbia to be developed pursuant to this Act.

CO(19) Tgx_e term “Council” means the Council of the District of
umbia. :

DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN FOR MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM FOR THE DISTRICT

Sec. 4. (aX1) Subject to subsection (g) of this section and section 24 USC 225b.
9bX1), effective October 1, 1987, the District shall be responsible for
the provision of mental health services to residents of the District.

(2) Not later than October 1, 1991, the Mayor shall complete the
implementation of the finul system implementation plan reviewed
by the Congress and the Council in accordance with the provisions of
this Act for the establishment of a comprehensive District mental
health system to provide mental health services amimﬂogmmn
through community mental health facilities to individ in the
District of Columbin.

{bX1) The Maycr shall prepare a preliminary system implementa-
tion plan for a comprehensive mental health system no later than 3

10




98 STAT. 3372 PUBLIC LAW 98-621—NOV. 8, 1984

87 Stat. 790.

Labor-
management
visory
committee,
establis!:ment.

months from the effective date of this Act, and a final im lementa-
tion plan no later than 12 months from the effective date of this Act.

(2) The Mayor shall submit the reliminary system implementa-
tion plan to the Council no later than 3 months from the effective
date of this Act. The Council shall review such plan and transmit
written recommendations to the Mayor regarding any revisions to
such plan no later than 60 days after such submission. The Mayor
shall submit the revised preliminary plan to the Committee on the
District of Columbia of the House of presentatives and the Com-
mittee on Labor and Human Resources and the Committee on
Governmentii Affairs of the Senate for review and comment in
accordance with the provisions of this Act. ; .

(3) The final system implementation plan shall be considered by

the Council consistent with the provisions of section 422(12) of the
Dlstn'ti ctA&f' Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorgani-
zation .
" .(4) After the review of the Council pursuant to paragraph (3), the
Mayor shall submit the final implementation plan to the Committee
on the District of Columbia of the House of Representatives and the
Committee on Labor and Human Resources and the Committee on
Governmental Affairs of the Senate for review aad comment in
accordance with the provisions of this Act.

{c) The system implementation plan shall—

(1) propose and describe an in ted, comprehensive, and
coordinated mental health system for the District of Columbia;

(2) identify the types of treatment to be offered, staffing
mte_ms. and the proposed sites for service delivery within the

rict of Columbia comprehensive mental health system;

(3) identify mechanisms to attract and retain personnel of
appropriate number and quality to meet the objectives of the
comprehensive mental health system;

(4) be in full compliance with the Federal court consent decree
in Dixon v. Heckler and all applicable District of Columbia
m(’g;lt%sm'dmﬂrtd itio d functi Saint

iden those positicns, programs, and functions at Sain
Elizabeths anital which are pro for assumption by the
District, those facilities at Saint Elizabeths Hospital which are
roposed for utilization by the District under a comprehensive
Bmtn‘ ict mental health system, and the staffing patterns and
programs at comtunity facilities to which the assumed func-
tions are to be integrated;

(6) identify any capital improvements to facilities at Saint
Elizabeths Hospital and elsewhere in the District of Cclumbia
proposed for delivery of mental health services, which are
necessary for the safe and cost effective delivery of mental
heal)th;e r::liqyes ; :nd fi 1 build

identify the specific rea property, buildings, improve-
ments, and personprecropert to be transferred lpursuant to
section 8(aX1) of this Act needed to provide mental health and
other services pravided by the Department of Human Services
under the final system implementation plan.

(dX1) The Mayor shall develop the stystem imElementation plan in
close consultation with officials of Saint Elizabeths Hospital,
through working groups to be established by the Secretary and the
Mayor for that purpose.

(2) The Mayor and the Secretary shall establish a labor-manage-
ment advisory committee, requesting the participation of Federal
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and District employee organizations affected by this Act, to make
recommendations on the system implementation plan. The commit-
tee shall consider staffing patternt under a comprehensive District
mental health care system, retention of Hoepital employees under
such system, Federal retraining for such employees, and any other
areas of concern releted to the establishment of a comprehensive
District system. In developing the system implementation plan the
Mayor shall carefully consider the recommendations of the commit-
tee. Such advisory committee shall not be subject to the Federal
Advisory Ce:amittee Act. . 5USCapp.

(3) The Mayor and such working groupe shall, in developing the
plan, solicit comments from the public, which shall include profes-
sional organizations, provider agencies and individuals, and mental
health advocacy groups in the District of Columbia.

(eX1) The Mayor. and the Secretary may, during the service coordi-
nation period, by mutual agreement and consistent with the require-
ments of the system implementation plan direct the shift of selected
glrogram responsibilities and staff resources from Saint Elizabeths

ospital to the District. The Secretary may assign staff occupying
Esitious in affected pro%rams to work under the supervision oty:he

istrict.-The Mayor shall notify. the Committce on the District of
Columbia of the House of Representatives and the Committee on
Labor and Human Resources and the Committee on Governmental
Affairs of the Senate in writing of any planned shift in program
responsibilites or staff resources not less than 30 days prior to the
lmglementatlon of such shift.

(2XA) Except as growded in subparagraph (B), after October 1, Prohibition.
1884, and during the service coorggxation period, no request for
proposals may be issued by the Secretary for any areas of commer-
cial activity at the Hospital pursuant to Office of Management and
Budget circular A-T76. ’

(B) The limitation under subgaragraph (A) shall not apply to
studies iritiated pursuant to such circular prior to October 1, 1984.
. ((X1) To assist the Mayor in .the development of the system Audit.
implementation plan, the Secretary shall contract for a financial
audit and a physical plant audit of all existi'rllﬁ facilities at the
Hospital to be completed by January 1, 1986. The financial audit
shall be conducted according to generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples. The physical plant audit s recognize any relevant
national and District codes and estimate the useful life of existing
facility support systems.

(2XA) Pursuant to such physical plant audit, the Secretary shall
initiate not later than October 1, 1987, and complete not later than
October 1, 1991, such repairs and renovations to such physical plant
and facility support systems of the Hospital as are to be utilized by
the District under the system implementation plan as part of a
comprehensive District mental health system, as are necessary to
meet any applicable code requirements or standards.

(B) At a minimum until October 1, 1987, the Secretary shall
maintain all other facilities and infrastructure of the Hospital not
assumed by the District in the condition described in such audit.

(g) During the service coordination period, the District of Colum-
bia and the Secretary, to the extent provided in the Federal court
consent decree, shall be jointly responsible for providing citizens
with the full range and scope of mental health services set forth in
such decree and the system iniplementation plan. No provision of
this Act or any action or agreement during the service coordination

12
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24 USC 225¢.

Retirement.

. period may be 8o construed as to nbsolve or relieve the District or

the Federal Government of their joint or respective responsibilitiec
So implement fully the mandates of the Federal court consent
ecree.

CONGRESSIONAL REVIEW OF SYSTEM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Skc. 5. (a) The Committee on the District ¢f Columbia of the House
of Representatives and the Committee on Labor and Human Re-
sources and the Committee on Governmental Affairs of the Senate
chall review the preliminary system implementation plan transmit-
ted by the Mayor pursuant to section 4 of this Act to determine the
extent of its compliance with the provisions of section 2(b) and
section 4 of this Act, and tranamit written recommendations reﬁrd-
ing any revisions to the preliminary plan to the Mayor not later
than 60 days after receipt of such plan. . '

() The Committee on the District of Columbia of the House of
Representatives and the Committee on Labor and Human Resources
and the Committee on Governmental Affairs of the Senate shall,
within 90 days of submission of the final system implementation
plan by the Mayor pursuant to section 4 of this Act, review such
plan to determine the extent to which it is in compliance with the
provisions of section 2(b) and section 4 of this Act.

TRANSITION PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE HOSPITAL

Sec. 6. (a) Employees of the Hospital directly affected by the
assumption of programs and functions by the District government
who meet the requirements for immediate retirement under the
provisions of section 8336(d) of title 5, United States Code, shall be
accorded the opportunity to retire during the 30-day period prior to
the assumption of such programs and functions.

(bX1) The system implementation plan shall prescribe the specific
number and types of positions needed by the District government at
the end of the service coordinaticn period.

{2) Notwithstanding section 3503 of title 5, United States Code,
employees of the Hospital shall only be transferred to District
employment under the provisions of this section.

{(cX1) While on the retention list or the District or Federal agency
reemployment priority list, the system implementation plan shail
provide to Hospital employees a right-of-first-refusal to District
employment in positions for which such employees may qualify, (A)
created under the system implementation ?lan in the comprehen-
sive District mental health system, (B) availzble under the Depart-
ment of Human Services of the District, and (C) available at the
District of Columbia General Hospital.

{2) In accordance with Federal regulations, the Secretary shall
establish retention registers of Hospital employees and provide such
retention registers to the District government. Employment in posi-
tions identified in the system implemeantation plan under subsection
tb) shall be offered to Hospital employees by the District government
according to each such employee’s relative standing on the retention
registers. )

3) Employee appeals concerning the retention registers estab-
lished by the Secretary shall be in accordance with Federal
regulations.

i3



PUBLIC LAW 98-621—NOV. 8, 1984 98 STAT. 3376

(4) Employee . appeals concerning employment offers by the Dis-
trict shall be in accordance with the District of Columbia Govern-
ment.Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act of 1978.

(dX1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, employees of
the Hospital, while on the Federel agency reemployment priority
list, shall have a right-of-first-refusal to employment in comparable
available positions for which they qualify within the Department of
Heslth and Human Services in the Washington metropolitan area.

(2) If necessary to separate employees of the Hospital from Fed-
eral employment, such employees may be separated only under
Federal reduction-in-force procedures.  ~ .

(3) A Federal agency reemployment priority list and a displaced
employeeg program shall be maintained for employees of the Hoepi-
tal by the Secre and the Office of Personnel Manegement in
accordance with Federal regulations for Federal employees
aeparatedg? reduction-in-force procedures. .

(4) The Mayor shall create and maintain, in consultation with the
Secretary, a District agency reemployment priority list of those
empl!gees of the Hospital on the retention registers who are not
offered employment under subsection (c). Individuals who refuse an
offer of employment under subsection (c) shall be ineligible for
inclusion on the District agency reemployment priority list. Such
reemployment priority list shall be administered in accordance with
procedures est&lished l”Pursuant to the District of Columbia Govern-
ment Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act of 1978 (D.C. Law 2-139).

(5) Acceptance of nontemporary employisent as a result of refer-
ral from any retention list or agency reemployment priority list
shall automatically terminate an individual’s severance pay as of
the effective date of such employment.

(e) Any contract entered into by the District of Columbia for the Contracts.

rovision of mental health services formerly provided by or at the

ospital shall require the contractor or provider, in filling new
positions created to perform under the contract, to give preference
to_qualified candidates on the District agency reemployment pri-
ority list created pursuant to subsection (d) of this section. An
individual who is offered nontemporary employment with a contrac-
tor shall have his or her name remain on the District agency
reemployment priority list under subsection (d) for not more than 24
months from the date of acceptance of suck employment.

CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR PFORMER EMPLOYEES OF THE
' HOSPITAL )

Skec. 7. (a) Each individual accepting employment without a break 24 USC 225e.
in service with the District government pursuant to section 6 shall—
(1) except as specifically provided in this Act, be required to
meet all District qualifications other than licensure require-
ments for appointment required of other candidates, and shall
become District employees in.the comparable District service
subject to the provisions of the District of Columbia Govern-
ment Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act of 1978, and all other
statutes and lations governing District personnel;
(2) meet all licensure requirements within 18 months of ap-
pointment by the District government; .
(3) notwit ding chapter 63 of title 5, United States Code, 5 USC 6301 et
transfer accrued annual and sick leave balances pursuant to s
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5 USC 8301 et
seq.

5 USC 8101 et
seq.

title XII of the District of Columbia Comprehensive Merit Per-
sonnel Act of 1978;

(4) have the grade and rate of pay determined in accordance
with regulations established pursuant to title XI of the District
of Columbia Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act of 1978, except
that no employee shall suffer a loss in the basic rate of pay or in
seniority; : : ) )

(5) if applicable, retain a rate of pay including the physician's
comparability allowance under the provisions of section 5948 of
title 5, United States Code, and continue to receive such allow-
ance under the terms of the then prevailing agreement until its
expiration or for a period of 2 years from the date of appoint-
ment by the District government, whichever occurs later;

(6) be entitled to the same health and life insurance benefits
as are available to District employees in the applicable service;

(1) if employed by the Federal Government before January 1,
1984, continue to be covered by the Unrited States Civil Service
Retirement System, under chapter 83 of title 5, United States
Code, to the same extent that such retirement system covers
District Government employees; and :

(8) if employed by the Federal Government on or after Janu-
ary 1, 1984, be subject to the retirement system applicable to
District government employees pursuant to title XX VI, Retire-

* ment, of the District of Columbia Government Comprehensive
Merit Personnel Act of 1978.

(b) An individual appointed to a position in the District govern-
ment without a break in service, from the retention list, or from the
District or Federal agency reemployment priority lists shall be
exempt from the residency requirements of title VIII of the District
¢1>g7 go umbia Government Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act of

(c) An individual receiving compensation for work injuries pursu-
ant to chapter 81 of title 5, United States Code, shall—

(1) continue to have the claims adjudicated and the related
costs paid by the Federal Government until such individual
recovers and returns to duty; ’

(2} if medically recovered and returned to duty, have any
subsequent claim for the recurrence of the disability determined
and paid under the provisions of title XXIII of the District of
Columbia Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act of 1978. ‘

(d) The District government may initiate or continue an action
against an individual who accepts employment under section 6(c) for
cause related to events that occur prior to the end of the service
coordination period. Any such action shall be conducted in accord-
ance with such Federal laws and regulations under which action
would have been conducted had the assumption of function by the
District not occurred. . ’

(e) Commissioned public health service officers detailed to the
District of Columbia mental health system shall not be considered
employees for purposes of any full-time employee equivalency total
of the Department of Health and Human Services. .

(D For purposes of this section, Hospital employees shall include
grmg:a ' patient employees occupying career positions at the

ospital.
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PROPERTY TRANSFER

Skc. 8. (aX1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), on October 1, Effective dates.
1987, the Secretary shall transfer to the District, without compensa- 24 USC 22if.
tion, all right, title, and interest of the United States in all real
property at Saint Elizabeths Hoepital in the District of Columbia
together with any buildings, improvements, and personal property
used in connection with such property needed to provide mental
health and other services provided by the Department of Human
Services indentified pursuant to section 4(cX7) of this Act.

(2) Such real property as is identified by the Secretary by Septem-
ber 30, 1987, as necessary to Federal mental health programs at
Saint’ Elizabeths Hoepital under section 2(bX5) shall not be trans-
ferred under this subsection. :

(b) On or before October ‘1, 1991, the Mayor shall prepare, and Development
submit to the Committee on the District of Columbia of the House of vlan.
Regomentativea and the Committees on Governmental Affairs and
Labor and Human Resources of the Senate, a master plan, not
inconsistent with the comprehensive plan for the National Capital,
for the use of all real property, buildi improvements, and per-
sonal property comprising Saint Elizabeths Hospital in the District
of Columbia not transferred or excluded pursuant to subsection (a)
of this section. In developing such plan, the Mayor shall consult

" with, and provide an opportunity for review by, appropriate Federal,
regional, and local agencies. Such master plan submitted by the
Mayor shall be approved by a law enacted by the Congress within
the twelve-month period foi owin’g the date such plan is submitted to
the Committee on the District of Columbia of the House of Repre-
sentatives and the Committees on Governmental Affairs and Labor
and Human Resources of the Senate. Immediately upon the ap-
proval of any such law, the Secre shall transfer to the District,
without compensation, all right, title, and interest of the United
States in and to such property in accordance with such approved
plan. The real property, ther with the buildinge and other
improvements thereon, including personal propergr used in connec-
tion therewith, known as the Oxon Cove Park and operated by the
National Park Service, Departme:it of the Interior, shall not be
transferred under this Act. .

(c) On October 1, 1985, the Secretery shall transfer to the District,
without compensation, all right, title, and interest of the United
States to lot 87, square 622, in the subdivision made by the District
of Columbia Redevelopment Land Agency, as per plat recorded in
the Office of the Surveyer for the District of Columbia, in liber 154
at folio 149 (901 First Street N.W., the J.B. Johnson Building and
grounds), :

- FINANCING PROVISIONS

Sec. 9. (a) There are authorized to be appropriated for grants by Appropristion
the Secretary of Health and Human Services to the District of authorization.
Columbia comprehensive mental health system, $30,000,000 for ;S 205,
fiscal year 1988, $24,000,000 for fiscal year 1989, $18,000,000 for
fiscal year 1990, and $12,000,000 for fiscal year 1991.

(bX1) Beginning on October 1, 1987, and in each subsequent fiscal
year, the appropriate Federal agency is directed to pay District
of Columbia the full costs for the provision of mental health diagnoe-
tic and treatment services for the tollowing types of pstients:

1R
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Compacts
between States.

87 Stat. 813

Appropriation
authorization.

68 Stat. 434.

Audit.

(A) &ny individual referred to the s{ntem pursuant to a
Federal statute or by a responsible Federal agency.

(B) Any individual referred to the system for emergency
detention or involuntary commitment after being taken into
custody (i) as a direct result of the individual's action or threat
of action against a Federal official, (ii) as a direct result of the
individual’s action or threat of action on the grounds of the
White House or of the Capitol, or (iii) under chapter 9 of title 21
of the District of Columbia Code.

(C) Any individual referred to the system as a result of a
criminal proceeding in a Federal court (including an individual
admitted for treatment, observation, and diagnosis and an indi-
.vidual found incompetent to stand ¢rial or found not guilty b
reason of insanity). The p ing provisions of this paragrap
a?ply to m}}' individual refe to the system (or to Saint
lixza:eths ospital) before or after the date of enactment of

this Act.

(2) The. responsibility of the United States for the coet of services
for individuals described in paragraph (1) shall not affect the treat-
ment responsibilities to the District of Columbia under the Inter.
state Compact on Mental Health.

(cX1) During the service coordination and the financial transition
periods, the District of Columbia shall gradually assume a greater
share of the financial responsibility for the provision of mental
health services provided by the system to individuals not described
in subsection (b).

(2) Section 502 of the District of Columbia Self-Government and
Governmental Reorganization Act is amended— :

(A) by inserting “(a)” after “Skc. 502.”, and
-4B) by adding at the end the following:

“(bX1) Except &s otherwise provided by paragraph (2), there are
authorized to be appropriated, in addition to the amounts authorized
to be appropriated under subsection (a), $25,000,000 for fiscal year
1986, $35,000,000 for fiscal year 1987, $30,000,000 for fiscal year 1988,
$20,000,000 for fiscal year 1989, $15,000,000 for fiscal year 1990, and
$10,000,000 for fiscal year 1991 to the District of Columbia for
establishing and maintaining a comprehensive mental health
system. :

“(2) For each of the fiscal years 1986 through 1990 there is
authorized to be appropriated, in addition to the amount authorized
under paragraph (1), an amount equal to one-third of the amount
authorized under paragraph (1) for the succeeding fiscal year. The
amount authori to be appropriated under paragraph (1) for any
such succeeding fiscal year shall be reduced by the amount appropri-
ated fcr the preceding fiscal year under the first sentence of this
paragraph.”. -

(d) Subject to section 4(fX2), capital improvements to facilities at
Saint Elizabeths Hospital authorized during the service coordination
Eerlod shall be the shared responsibility of the District and the

‘ederal Government in accordance with Public Law 83-472.

(e) Pursuant to the financial audit under section 4(f), any unas--
signed liabilities of the Hospital shall be assumed by and shall be
the sole responsibility of the Federal Government.

(fX1) After the service coordination period, the Secretary shail
conduct an audit, under general% accepted accounting fproceclur&e,
to identify the liability of the Federal Government for accrued

% 17
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annual leave balances for those employees assumed by the Diatrict
under the system implementation plan.

(2) There is authorized to bo appropriated for payment by the  Appropriation
Federal Government to the District an amount equal to the liability authorization.
identified by such audit. . :

(P Nothing in this Act shall affect the authority of the District of
Columbia under any other statute to colleci costs billed by the
District of Columbia for mental health services, except that pay-
ment for the same costs may not be collected from more than one

party.
bl(hf) The Government of the United States shall be solely responsi- Claims.
e for— ' : ‘
(1) all claims and causes of action against Saint Elizabeths
Al that. accrue Mmedl?m rorting pch Do oy he
: on w p asse such claims were or
may be filed, except that the United States shall, in the case of
any tort claim, only be responsible for any such claim against
the United States that accrues before October 1, 1987, and the
United States shall not oom&roxn_ino or settle any claim result-
ing in' District liability without the consent of the District,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; and
(2) all claims that result in a judgment or award against Saint
- Elizabeths Hospital before October 1, 1987.

REPEALS AND CONFORMING AMENDMENTS

Szc. 10. (a) Chapter 4 of title LIX of the Revised Statutes of the
United States (24 U.S.C. 161, 165, 170, 191, 211, 211a, 211b, and 221,
and D.C. Code 82-405 and 32-406) is repealed. :
() The matter under the subh “SaINT ELizaneris Hospi-
TAL.” under the heading “DET OF THE INTERIOR.” in
the first section of an Act of June 5, 1920, chapter 235 of the laws of 41 Stat. 919.
the second session of the 66th Congress, is amended by striking out .
the second sentence (24 U.S.C. 166). .
(c) The matter under the subhea%g’ “SaiNt Euizaserns Hospi-
TAL.” under the heading “DEP. OF THE INTERIOR.” in
-the.first.section of the Second Deficiency. Appropriation Act, fiscal
year 1920, is amended by striking out the second and third sentences 41 Stat. 513,
(24 US.C. 168 and 176). . .

(dX1) An Act of 'Auaat 4, 1947, chapter 478 of the laws of the first
-gession of the 80th Congress (24 U.S.C. 168a, 169, 159a, 185, and
195a), is repealed

(2) The matter under the heading “Saint Elizabeths Hospital” in
title II of the Departments of Labor, and Health, Education, and
Welfare Appropriation Act, 1955, is amended by striking out all that 68 star. 137
follows “$110,000” before the period.

(e) The matter under the subheading “GoveERNMENT HOSPITAL POR
THE INSANE.” under the heading * ER THE DEPARTMENT OF
THE INTERIOR.” in the first section of an Act of A 24, 1912,
chapter 355 of the laws of the second session of the 62d Co is
amended by striking out the second sentence (24 US.C. 171).

(f) The first sentence under the subheading “GovErNMENT Hospr-
TAL FOR THE INSANE.” under the heading “MISCELLANEOUS OB-
JECTS.” in the first section of an Act of A 7, 1882, chapter 433
mmtof the first session of the 47th Congress, is amended by 22 Stat. 329,

out— » :

37 USC 461.
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40 Stat. 19.

34 Stat. 730.

§5 Stat. 760.

39 Stat. 557.

40 Stat. 373.

23 Stat. 213.

76A Stat. 699.

(1) “; and that hereafter the surplus products and waste
material of the hospitsi may be sold or ucbnnsed for the
benefit of the hospital, an dgoeoeda to be used accounted

_ fur the same &s its other funds:” (24 U.S.C. 17 2), and
(2) the two mfmm (24 USC. 165 and 185), and by inserting

in lieu the
'x)'l'hemttnrun thelubheadlng “Sarnt Erzaseras Hospr-
TAL.” and that subheading under the ] ing “DEPARTMENT OF
THE lNTERIO " of the Act of Apnl 17, 1917 (24 USC. 175), are

m .,
'l'he matter under the subh “GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL ron
THE INBANE.” undart.haheadmg ER THE DEPARTMENT O
THE INTERIOR, in the first section of an Act of June 80, 1906
chapter8914ofthehmoft.heﬁntnuionofthe is
amended by striking.out the last three sen (24U.S.C.
{ An Act of , 1941, cha llofthelamoftheﬁm
seseion of the TTth ¢4USC
m“’&‘m“““ 16, 1941mudc 181, 82.188,and184)
e
(k)(l)'l'hemattarun r the SpAy, mcmmo ” of an
ug.st29, 1916.chapter417 the laws of the first session of
ngress, is amended bystrllnngout “Hereafter interned
&mm and prisoners of war, under the jurisdiction of the Navy
partment, who are or may become msane,nhallbeentxtledto
on forﬂtaeatment the Gmmment Hospltal for the

©¢

TAL.” under the heading “DEP. OF THE INTERIOR.” in
theﬁrstsecﬁonofanActs%fu?ctobero,lg)l'l.cha r790fthelaws
mamenm

HosrrraL
THE INSANE.”’ under the heading USOBJECI'S."of
an Act of July 7, 1884, chapter 282 of the laws of the first session of
%‘e‘%ﬂbclom mamended ystnhngouttheaeeondsentenee
(m) The matter unde the “PANAMA CANAL” in the

ﬁmuectlonofanActofJunelz,w , chapter 27 of the laws of the
ﬁratmonoftheﬁ&hCongms.mamendedbystﬁhngoutthe
follumng(ZdU.SC 196):
‘Upon the application of the Governor.of the Canal Zone, the
of Health, Education, and Welfare may tranafertoémnt

. Elizabeths Hospital, in the District of Colnmbm, for treatment, any

American citizen subject to a hospitalization order issued under
goction 1637 of title 5 of the Canal Code, whose legal residence
of the territori Commo

in one rritories, the nwealth of Puerto Rico

or the District of Columbia for the .ofellgibnhtyforpubhc

medwalcanelthasbeenimpwsiblewestahhs_h. U

ment of the ce of persons so -transferred to Saint
tal, f.he tlm;:_an.nt&am’leni: of that hocpltal shall there-

upon transfer g of residence, and the

expenses attendant thereon from the appropriation for

xnport of Saint Elizabeths Hi
(n) ActofJul 18, 1940, chg:tarBBSofthelawuofthethnﬂ
session of the T6th ngmas (24 U 196b), is vepealed.
(o) The matter under the 'GOvERNMENT HOSPITAL FOR
THE INSANE:” under the headmg “MISCELLANEOUS OBJECTS.” in the
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first section of an Act of March 3, 1901, chapter 853 of the second
session of the 56th Congress, it amended by striking out the second
sentence (24 US.C. 197). 31 Stat. 1162,

(p) The first sentesice in the matter under the subheading ‘‘Mepi-
CAL AND Ho6PITAL DEPARTMENT:” under the heading “MxpiCAL DE-
PARTMENT.” of an Act of May 11, 1908, chapter 163 of the laws of ths
first session of the 60th Congress, is amended by striking cut the
second proviso and the colon preceding and inserting in lieu thereof
a period (24 U.S.C. 198). 35 Srat. 122,

(@) An Act of June 23, 1874, chapter 465 of the laws of the first
session of the 43rd Congress (24 U.S.C. 212, 213, and 214), is repealed,

(r) The first sentence of section 4(a) of Public Law 86- 71 (24
U.S.C. 324) is amended by stri cut “Saint Elizabeths Hoepital, at
any other” and inserting in lieu thereof “any”.

(s) Section 2104 of ‘the Public Health Service Act (42 US.C.

-3) is repealed. - B

(tX1) The last sentence of section 206 of an Act of Jure 9, 1948,
chapter 428 of the laws of the second session of the 80th Congress
(D.C. Code 22-3508), is amended by striking out “Saint Elizabeths
Hospital” and inserting in lieu thereof “an a propriate institution".

{2) Section 207 of that Act (D.C. Code ?5—3 ) is amended by
stziking out “the Superintendent of Saint Elizabeths Hospital” and
tnsemgrtmgm lieu tt}l:ergof “an apgropri?t:h ou m.t.al ol 5cial".r£al:g

Y out “the Superintendent of the hospital® and inserti

in lieu thereof “that official”. : -

(3) Section 208 of that Act (D.C. Code 22-3510) is amended by

i ig out - “Saint- Elizabsths Hospital” and inserting in lieu

thereof “an institution". .

(u) The first sentence under the subheadmg “GoverNMENT HosP1- 24 USC 202,
TAL FOR THE INSANE” under the heading “INTERIOR DEPART-
MENT."” of an Act of March 3, 1877, chapter 105 of the laws of the

second session of the 44th Co , is amended by striking cut the
semicolon and all that fellows before the period (D.C. Code 32-401).
(v) The first sentence under the sub ing ""GOVERNMENT HOSPIF 24 USC 203.
TAL FOR THK INSANE.” under the heading US O
- JECTS.” of an Act of March 3, 1879, chapter 182 of the laws of the
third session of the 45th Co 7 is amended by striking out the
proviso and the colon and inserting in lieu thereof a
period (D.C. Code 32-40%). S

(w) The matter under the subheading “HoSPITAL FOR THE .HSANE:"
under the heading “DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA.” of an Act of March
4, 1913, chapter 149 of the laws of the third session of the 62nd

ggf‘gor:;ss, is amended by striking out the second sentence (D.C. Code
(x) Sections 4 and 5 of an Act of June 22, 1948; chapter 597 of the

laws of the second session of the 80th Congress (D.C. Code 32-415

and 32-416) are repealed. - :
(y) The matter under the Bubhetdl]i\% "GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL FOR

THE INSANE.” under the heading “UNDER THE DEPARTMENT OF

THE INTERIOR.” in the first section of an Act of March 4, 1911,

chapter 285 of the laws of the third session of the 6lst Congress. is 36 Stat. 1421.

amended by striking out the second sentence. . 24 USC 165.
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EFFECTIVE DATES

24USC 25 note.  Skc. 11. (a) Except as provided in subsuction (b), this Act shall take
effect on October 1, l98§

(b) Section 10 shall take effect on October 1, 1987.
Approved November 8, 1984. '

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY—H.R. 6224;

HOUSE REPORTS: No. 98-1024 and Pt. 2 (Comm. on the District of Columbia).
CONGRESSIONAL RECORD, Vol. 130 (1984):

Oct. 2, considered and passed House.
Oct. 5, considered and Senate, amended.
Oct. 9, House con in Senate amendments.

WEEKLY COMPILATION OF PRESIDENTIAL DOCUMENTS, Vol. 20, No. 45 (1984);
Nov. 9, Presidential statement. .

©)




16

Mr. FAunTROY. On November 8, 1984, a historic event ook place
when President Ronald Reagan signed into law legislation to trans-
fer St. Elizabeths Hospital from Federal control to that of the gov-
ernment of the District of Columbia. By doing so, the President
ended an era of over 125 years during which the Federal Govern-
ment administered and delivered institutional imental health care
for the citizens of the District of Columbia. oo

As long as I can recall, past attempts to transfer St. Elizabeths
Hospital were met with furor on both sides. Starting under Presi-
dent Truman and through each succeeding Presidency, legislation
was drafted by the House and the Senate, the White House, the
District and the Department of Health and Human Services. '

I am sure that committee archives would show that the desire to
transfer St. Elizabeths Hospital predates this century. But it was
not until the summer of 1984 that we could bring all the forces to-
gether, air opposing views, and negotiate a fair and equitable piece
of legislation that embodies the best of many proposals.

I am certain that none of us here today will forget the tug of war
that went on around the witness table as the leadership and staffs
from this committee, the Department of Health and Human Serv-
ices, the District of Columbia government, AFSCME, the American
Psychiatric Association, the American Association for the Advance-
ment of Psycholugy, and the mental health law project worked
throughout the summer and fall to reach the legislative agreement
that became Public Law 98-621.

Today we begin the congressional review process as mandated by
section 5 of Public Law 98-621, and es outl{ined in the committee
report numbered $8-1024.

Before we call our first witness, I note that our. Republican rank-
ing minority member is not here. Does he have a statement to be
entered into the record?

It is now my privilege to welcome our first witness, Mr. Wilford
Forbush, the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Health Operations
and Director, the Office of Management, the Public Health Service.
We're very happy to have you, Mr. Forbush, and you may proceed
as you see fit. Your entire statement will be entered into the record
in its entirety.

TESTIMONY OF WILFORD J. FORBUSH, DEPUTY ASSISTANT SEC-
RETARY FOR HEALTH OPERATIONS AND DIRECTOR, OFFICE
OF MANAGEMENT, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Mr. ForBusH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I would like
to introduce those who are accompanying me today. I am a manag-
er. 'm not a health professional, and I'm pleased to have with me
Dr. William Prescott, the superintendent of St. Elizabeths Hospital
and a well known professional in this field. On questions of clinical
jt}xldgment and of that sort, I would like to turn to him to answer
those.

I also have Jim Pittman, a familiar person to this committee,
who is the Associate Director of NIMH in charge of the transition.

In the interest of time, I'd like to summarize the statement
which you have put into the record at this point, and say that the

A -
FCI
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National Institute of Mental Health has reviewed the systems plan
proposed by the District of Columbia and finds that it does repre-
sent appropriate mental health concept and is really consisient
with the current state of the art in mental health care. We're
pleased to endorse it from that standpoint.

I'm also pleased to say that we have been working very closely
with the officials of the District of Columbia to start those imple-
mentation steps so critical to achieving the goal of this plan. I
think we have taken appropriate interim actions, and we are pre-
pg.ggd to do more as we reach the day of transition on October 1,
1987.

To me, the key thing really is the implementation. I think we
have a good concept here, and we have to work as hard as we can
on all sides to achieve the promise of this new plan.

T'd be pleased to handle your questions as best I can.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Forbush follows:]

XA
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Thank you for the opportunity to tastify today concerning the
District's Preliminary svstem Implementation plan to implenent p,v,
98-621, ®The Saint Elizabdeths Hospital and District of rolumhia “lental
Health sServicas act.* I an Wilford J. Porbush, Deputy Assistant
Secretary for Health fNperations, and Director, office of Managament,
Public Health Service. with me today are Dr. W{llian 3. Prescott,
Superintendent, Saint Blizabeths Hospital, and Yr. James E. Pittman,
Associqte Director for Saint Elizabeths Hospital Transitinn, National

Institute of tental Health,

On October 1, 1987, the District of Columbia will assune €ull
Tesponsibility for mental health services to its residents including

operation of Saint Elizaheths Yospital,

Today St. Blizabeths Hosp;tal, which has played such a historic tole
in American psychiatry, provides care to approximately 1,500
inpatients (90 percent of these are p.C. residentg). 1In additinn, thae
hospital cares for approximately 2,500 outpatients, virtually all -f

whom are District of Columbia regidents.

In keeping with the specifics and intent of the lagistlation,
departmenta) personnel, particularly st. Rlizabeths nspital state,
flave heen involved in the development of the Pistrict'sg Preliminary
Systems Implementation Plan under reviey‘here todav. The vlan hag
also been thoroughly reviewed by the Director, Mational Institute of
“ental Health, and staff of the Institute +ho have expertise in

specific areas of mental health care. They have evaluated the plan

i oD
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Page 2

as consistent with the =ziate of the art fron A mental health svstens
research, and practice perspective. The preliminary plan not snly has
been developed to mest its particular and unique neads hut adheres o
recognized standards and principles. The Plan was developed to assure
the continuation of the r 1ge of services necessary in an inteqrated
and comprahensiva mental health delivery system embodvinag: (a)
community-based continuity of care and support services: and (b) an
integrated array of psychiatric, medical, social, rehabilitation,

vocational, and other support services.

It is a well-accepted mental health doctrine thit continuity of care
is necessary for persons in need of mental hcalth services ko receive
the optimal and least intrusive care suited tn their particular
needs. Thus, the plan offers a range of outpatient, partial
hospitalization, half-way house, aftercare, and related services to
markedly decrease the number of persons who might otherwise be
inappropriately placed in inpatient settings. The plan further
nrovides for special programs and attention to the needs of the
homeless mentally ill and increases services for children, forensic
psychiatric services, as well as linkages and/otr stabiii:inq services

for alecoholics and drug abusers.

Throughout this planning and transition process, there has been
extensive coordination, collaboration, and consultation with District,
departmental, and SEH cfficials under the direction of the District's
Mental Health System Reorganization Office. Numerous work grouos

composed of SEH and District officials have bean established to work
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on various aspects of the plan and. {ts implementation, 1 cansiderahla
effort has also been devoted to Planning for proviaisng that acfect
employees of the hospital, {ncluding requlac meetings n€ the
statutorily nandated lahor-management advisory committee, In
addition, a first draft of the nropoged staffing for the new svsten
has been widely circulated amoﬁé St. "lizabeths emplovees. mnevisions
based on their comments ace currently beinn undertakan hy the fental

Health Systems Reorganization Office.

The Department of Health and Human Services has undertaken geveral
important paraillel endeavors to assure timely implementétion of the
Act. Among those completed are: audits of the physical plant and
financial status of the hospital. and transfec of the J.B. Johnson
Buildina and grounds to the District of Columbia government. We are
now proceeding with or developing plans for undertaking completinn of
the transition duringy the cemaining months, including:

0 reorganizing and combining adult outpatient services to ensure
a smooth and ordecrly transition of patient care into the new
mental YWwaith system;

0 combining and reorganizing energency nsychiatric secvices gnd
developing setvices for the liomeless;

o realigning hospital facilitiaes into an acute carr hospital and
programs for longer term, intensive trcatment and community
living while retaining specialized programs foc childcen,
hearing impaired, and psychiatric nursing care:

o consolidating hospital and D.C. mental health patient data and

developing a unified managenent information system;
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Baqge 4
o beginning the review of training necessary for emplovees to
assune positions in the new svstem; and
© preparing an extensive information program targeted to affected

employees which is focused on rights and benefits.

Overall, we believe the gtatus of 1mp1emeﬁéation i3 quite promising in
achieving timely and effective administrative and program changes.Our
goal is development of an integrated public mental health service
syeten for District residents as intended by Public Law 98-621. The
ground-work for a comprehensive community-hased and community focused
system has been maﬂe through this plan. The plan envisions a svstem
that will afford opportunity to the mentally ill citizens of the
District to reqularly improve their access to improved care. Although
#e endorge the gystem plan prepared by the Digtrict, we recoanize that
achievement of its benefits depends on caraful imolementation -
throughout the transition process. I believe we have taken a
constructive role to date and commit ourselves to carry through for

the remainder of this important endeavor.

¥r, Chairman, Je wish to 4o everything we possibly cian to achieve this

end,; and we will be happy to answer any questions vou nay have,
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Mr. FAUNTROY. All right. Thank you so much, Mr. Forbush.

On April 29 of this year, as you know, the subcommittee held
oversight hearings on the events and circumstances surrounding
the death of Mr. Emory Lee. As a part of the staff investigative
report, St. Elizabeths Hospital was requested to provide the sub-
committee with ways in which it was correcting the problems
which may have contributed to the unfortunate event there.

My first question is: Is there progress being made to this end,
and when can we expect a report on it? :

Mr. ForBusH. Yes. We are definitely making progress on that
point, and Dr. Prescott is prepared to report on that now.

Dr. Prescorr. We have nearly completed our responses to the
questions hat were asked for us and the directions that were given
to us through the staff report, and will be forwarding those this
week to NIMH for their perusal and then on to your office. We
expect that to occur within the next week.

Mr. FAuNTROY. Very good. We look forward to that. At this point
we as a committee are concerned about the effect that the transfer
process is having upon the professional and support staff out there
at Saint Elizabeths and, therefore, on patient care.

Is gatient care being adversely affected, in your view, at this
point? -

Dr. Prescorr. I don’t think so, sir. We have at this point—we are
experiencing some staff anxiety at the hospital, as would be antici-
pated under these circumstances. We've had some departures in
key staff positions, but we’ve also had some new arrivals. We've
had people who want to come into the new system, are anxious
about the prospects of a modern state of the art, community based
mental health=system; and so far, we haven’t experienced serious
staff loss that would compromise patient care activities.

The morale problems, we’re addressing directly and indirectly in
a number of ways. My position is that patient care has not been
adversely affected at this point, and we expect to maintain that
throughout the transition position.

Mr. FAunTrOY. Those who left—Is it your view that they left be-
cause they were dissatisfied with the new arrangements?

Dr. Prescort. Well, 1 wouldn’t say that theyv left because they
were dissatisfied with the new arrangements. There have been—of
the professionals that have left, a number—very few, as a matter
of fact of the professionals have expressed concern about the trans-
fer of employment, but that’s been very much a minority. .

We've looked at the professionals who have left since the transi-
tion legislation was passed, and in most cases, virtually all cases, as
a matter of fact, the reasons for their departure would have been
reagsons for their departure under any circumstances. .

Mr. FAUNTROY. When we negotiated the fiscal package for Public
Law 98-621, you may recall we tried to anticipate the deficit reduc-
‘tion mood of the White House and Congress, and we reduced the
additional transfer supplemental from $210 to $135 million in
hopes of foregoing additional future cuts.

My question is: In light of Gramm-Rudman, what has happened
to the supplemental, and what is to be proposed in the future, if
you know? .
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Mr. ForBusH. Mr. Chairman, there are really two parts to that
question. For fiscal year 1986, the one we're in now, the Gramm-
Rudman across-the-board reduction of 4.3 percent on domestic pro-
g‘rams has been applied to the Federal appropriations made to

aint Elizabeths Hospital, as required by law. That’s just inevita-
ble. It was also applied to a large portion of our outside income.

As far as fiscal year 1987, though, the amounts requested by the
President are consistent with the New Systems Act, and there has
been no reduction in that. However, if it comes to pass that later,
when the whole situation is reviewed at the end of the summer,
and if some further across-the-board reduction is required to meet
the deficit tz:lget, the reduction would be made based on appropria-
tions provided by Congress. That’s a starting point for those reduc-
tions. It’s the appropriations made.

Mr. FaunTtRrOY. You indicate, therefore, that you did take the 4.3-
percent cut.

Mr. ForBus:i. Yes, sir. We had to. -

Mr. FaAunTtrOY. What, roughly, did that cost you?

Mr. ForBusH. Well, the—let me see. I don’t have that overall
dollar amount. It has been a difficult job for us to adjust ourselves
to those—to that reduction. It came relatively late in the year. The
total sequestration, as it’s called in the Gramm-Rudman terminolo-
gy, is $3.7 million, and that occurring as it did in the second quar-
ter of the fiscal year has caused a great deal of difficulty for our
management. 2

I think we have survived it. We are doing our very best to take
that reduction with a minimum impact on our program, but cer-
tain things have had to be deferred and certain things of a discre-
tionary nature, studies and this sort that we planned to undertake
as part of the transition process, have had to be deferred until next
fiscal year or cancelled altogether.

Mr. FauntrOY. You anticipated my concern, and that is where
the cuts affected the delivery of services. And $3.7 million?

Mr. ForBusH. $3.7 million. Yes, sir.

Mr. FaunTroY. That’s a lot of money. What did you have to cut
out, particularly with respect to patient care?

Mr. ForBusH. Well, we do have an employment.freeze in effect at
the hospital. And that, of course—we'’re trying to minimize that
impact on patient care, but it’s difficult. It’s difficult going.

e have deferred some equipment purchases, supply purchases,
things like that that we can live without until next fiscal year. It's’
taking a bit of a risk, but I think we have to do it.

I said, some discretionary items where we were going to do
some studies or enhance information systems and things like this,
we have had to defer. :

Mr. Fauntroy. What did you have to do with your salary level
' oﬁ'erings for the professional staff? '

Mr. ForBusH. Well, that’s diciated by the personnel classification
system. We haven’t changed that.

Mr. FAUNTROY. So you didn’t touch that at all?

Mr. ForsusH. No, sir. .

Mr. FAuNTROY. On May 12 this year, channel 4, WRC, began a
series cf broadcasts concerning walkaway patients, as you may
recall. Without getting into a long defense of the hospital, could
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- you enlighten us as to who makes decisions that sllows patients to
leave the confines of the John Howard Pavillion?

Mr. ForsusH. Yes. Dr. Prescott is prepared to deal with those
questions. -

Dr. Prescorr. Yes, sir. Those decisions are made by a forensic
review board which is a group that meets twice a week in the John
Howard Pavillion to review all of these kinds of changes in patient
status. The forensic review board consists of the division director,
the medical director for the division, the chiefs of all of the disci-
plines which includes nursing, social work and psychology, and a
representative from the St. Elizabeths Hospital Legal Office.

We have four classes of so-called ground privileges from the John
Howard Pavillion, class A, B, C and D. Class A is one in which the
patient is allowed to leave the John Howard building, but is se-
cured; that is, handcuffed, and is accompanied by two escorts.

Class B is a category in which the patient is allowed to leave the
building escorted, and class C is one in which the patient is allowed
to leave the building but must report in by telephone contact on a
regular bagis throughout the period of time that they’re out of the
building. Class D is unsupervised ground privileges.

All of these categories are decided upon by the forensic review
board and not the treatment teams of the patients, who we feel
might be somewhat closer to the patient and, therefore, not as ob-
Jective about these things.

So the way it works is that the treatment teams that work with
the patients decide, on the basis of clinically relevant material,
that the patient is ready for one of these categories of grounds
privilege. They then apply to the forensic review board.

The forensic review board then goes over the material with the
treatment team and the patient, and makes a decision to either
concur or not to concur. Any change in status—the progression is
always from the most intensive, restrictive grounds privilege to the
least, and any change from A to D has to be decided on by the fo-
rensic review board as well.

So that’s the process, sir.

Mr. FaunTROY. How long has this process been in effect?

Dr. Prescorr. That's—it’s been in effect for a long, long time, sir.
it’s been many years. :

Mr. FAUNTROY. Are you under court mandate to let these pa-
tients out? o

Dr. Prescorr. No, we're not, sir. The court is involved in our pa-
tients at John Howard in two ways. One is release from the hospi-
tal, release from mental health status, psychiatric treatment status
into whatever other status they’re going to go into, if it’s release
from the system or whether it’s release to another secure facility.
The court has to be brought in and has to concur.

Also, the court has to agree that any patient from the John
Howard be allowed to have off-grounds privileges, and we have
some d;;at:ieni:s from the John Howard who actually work off
grounds, patients who have been there for many years usually, pa-
tients who have been treated very intensively and very carefully
scrutinized, and often in fact have jobs. Then will come back to
John Howard in the evening, for example. :

uo
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Any situation involving that sort of treatment has to involve the
court. So they're involved in those two ways, sir.

Mr. FaunTrOoY. What relationship does the hospital have with
the public defender’s service?

Dr. Prescotrt. We provide public defender’s office with space at
St. Elizabeths Hospital. They have access to our legal system.
We're in constant communication with them. Any one of our pa-
tients, which includes forensic patients as well as civil patients, can
use the public defenders on the grounds as their legal representa-
tive.

All they need to do is to contact somebody in that office, and
they have representation. Once that initial contact is made, then
the public defender’s office has access to the records, to the treat-
ment teams and-to treating clinicians, and are treated as any other
lawyer might be in the System, with the exception that we actually
offer them office space and have established a long-time relation-
sh,ip, very positive relationship generally, with the public defend-
er's service. A

Mr. FAUNTROY. Let me tinally return to the question of funding
for fiscal year 1987. You said that the levels that are recommended
by the President for fiscal year 1987, you feel, are adequate?

Mr. ForBusH. Well, they were consistent with the legislatio.: that
mandates the transfer and the creation of a new system.

Mr. FaunTrOY. And if, therefore, the Supreme Court does not do
wiet it ought to do and what we expect it to do and Gramm-
Rudman is in effect, the next round of cuts would be—you’d have
to take as well, is your understanding? » :

Mr. ForBusH. Well, it’s a two-stage process, Mr. Chairman. First,
Congress has to sort of make programmatic judgments that we all
hope will achieve the deficit target in that bill without sequestra-
tion. OK? The President’s budget is one way to do that. The Budget
Committee resolutions are alternative ways of doing that. If that
goes through the regular legislative and appropriations process, no
sequestration occurs. :

However, if that process fails to do that, and if in the summer
when the reexamination of the spending and the deficit and the
income and all that is done, and it shows that the projected deficit
is neo; at the target, then a new sequestration order has to be pre-
pared. : : ,

If the Supreme Court puts down the procedure, then that would
come up to a vote in Congress through the alternative process I
specified in that act. But that sequestration thing only comes into
effect- if Congress—if the regular budget and legislative process
fails to achieve the target.

So the budget request I'm referring to are consistent with achiev-
ing that target through programmatic means.

Mr. FaunTtroy. All right, gentlemen. Thank you so very much.
We look forward to the report, as you promised, this week on the
Emory Lee case, and I appreciate not only the thoroughness of your
testimony but the candor with which you’ve responded to ques-
tions. '

Mr. ForBusH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. FaunTtroy. Thank you.

'A 32 |
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Mr. FaunTrOY. Let’s move to our next witness, who is the direc-
tor of the Department of Human Services for ihe government of
the District of Columbia, Mr. David Rivers. I'm going to ask that
Ms. Virginia Fleming will join Mr. Rivers. Ms. Fleming is director
of the mental health systems reorganization office. We're very
pleased to have both of you.

We have likewise your testimony. We will enter both in the

record as prepared, and you may proceed in whatever manner you
choose.

TESTIMONY OF DAVID E. RIVERS, DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF
HUMAN SERVICES, GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF CO-
LUMBIA

Mr. Rivers. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I'm David
Rivers, the director of the D.C. Department of Human Services.
With me is Virginia Fleming, the director of the D.C. Office of
Mental Health Reorganization.

Mr. Chairman, you have before you a copy of my testimony, so
I'd like to summarize my statement, if you will.

Mr. FaunTROY. Certainly.

Mr. Rivers. A major concern in my testimony is found on page 9.
We are seriously concerned about the condition of the buildings
that are being transferred to the new system in October 1987. We
estimate that it will cost about $71 million to bring these buildings
up to code and appropriate standards in order for us to resume a
responsibility for the system.

As you are aware, the Federal Government has completed en
audit. We had about $66 million that was appropriated sometime
ago for the renovation of the buildings, but most of this money has
been eroded given the inflationary costs in terms of renovation of
the facilities.

So, again, our major concern right now in the system would be
again trying to bring those facilities up to proper code in order for
us to run our system. So, again, that would be a major concern that
I'd like to amplify during my testimony.

Again, we have employed a very comprehensive process during
this design of this plan. We had over 400 people and about 800 pa-
tients involved in the process. We think it's a very definitive and
comprehensive plan, and one that we thiank that we can indeed
manage within the District government.

Again. Ginny will get into the details of our overall plan. Thank
you very much.

Mr. FaunTroy. All right.

[The prepsred statement of Mr. Rivers follows:]

62-983 0 - 86 - 2
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OVERSIGHT HEARINGS
ON THE DISTRICT'S PRELIMINARY PLAN TO IMPLEMENT PL 98-621
"SAINT ELIZABETHS HOSPITAL AND THE
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT"

ROOM 1310 LONGWORTH HOUSE OFFICE BUILDING
MAY 22, 1986 10:00 A.M.

I AM PLEASED TO HAYE THIS OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY BEFORE YOU
TODAY, MR. CHAIRMAN, AS YOU UNDERTARE YOUR REVIEW OF THE
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA’S PRELIMINARY PLAN TO IMPLEMENT P.L.
98-621, "SAINT ELIZABETHS HOSPITAL AND THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
MLNTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT". I AM DAVID E. RIVERS, DIRECTOR OF
THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES. WITH ME IS MRS. VIRGINIA
FLEMING, DIRECTOR OF THE MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM REORGANIZATION

OFFICE IN MY DEPARTMENT.
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PUBLIC LAW 98-621 ESTABLISHED THE PROCESS BY WHICH THE FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT WILL END THE MANAGEMENT AND FUNDING OF ITS ONLY
GENERAL PUBLIC MENTAL HOSPITAL, SAINT ELIZABETHS, AND THE
DISTRICT WILL ESTABLISH A COMPREHENSIVE MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM
WITH FULL AUTHORITY FOR ALL PATiENT CARE. AS MAYOR BARRY
STATED 1IN HIS LETTER TRANSMITTING THIY PLAN TO THE HOUSE
DISTRICT COMMITTEE,
"THIS NEW COMPREHENSIVE MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM WILL HAVE A
FAR-REACHING IMPACT ON THE QUALITY OF LIFE IN OUR
COMMUNITY. WE WELCOME THE CHALLENGE OF ASSUMING
COMPLETE HOME RULE RESPKSIBILITY FOR MENTAL HEALTH CARE
AND THE OPPORTUNITY TO DEMONSTRATE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
COMMUNITY-BASED CARE. WE PLACE THE HIGHEST POSSIBLE
PRIORITY ON A SUCCESSFUL ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THIS TRANSFER
OF AUTHORITY AND ON PUTTING A COMPREHENSIVE AND
INTEGRATED MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM IN PLACE WHICH WILL

SERVE THOSE MOST IN NEED."
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ON OCTOBER 1, 1987, THE DISTRICT WILL ASSUME FULL
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PATIENT CARE. TO CARRY OUT THAT RESPONSI-

BILITY WE WILL CREATE IN THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SBRYICES A NEW
COMMISSION OF MENTAL HEALTH, PARALLEL TO THE COMMISSION OF
PUBLIC HEALTH AND THE COMMI 'SION ON SOCIAL SBRVICES. THIS NEW
COMMISSION WILL MANAGE ALL PUBLIC INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT
CAREB, INCLUDING BOTH CIVIL AND FORBNSIC SERVICES. IT WILL
INTEGRATE ALL THE SBRVICES NOW PROVIDED BY SAINT ELIZABETHS
HOSPITAL AND THE DISTRICT’S MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
ADMINISTRATION INTO A CINGLE, CBNTRALIZED AND SIMPLIFIED

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE.

PLANNING PROCEBSS AND TIMETABLE
2280082 ThULPSS AND TIMETABLE

WE HAVE TO DATE MET ALL THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTIONS 4 AND 5 OF

P.L. 98-621 WITH REBSPBCT TO PLANNING PROCESS AND REVIEW.
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MAYOR BARRY TRANSMITTED THE PRELIMINARY SYSTEM IMPLEMENTATION
PLAN TO THE DISTRICT COUNCIL ON JANUARY 1, 1986. MRS. POLLY
SHACELBTON, CERAIR OF THE BUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE, HELD TWO
DAYS OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE PLAN, WHICH WAS APPROVED BY
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 6-566 ON FEBRUARY 28, 1986. ON MARCH 28,
1986, MAYOR BARRY COMMUNICATED TO CHAIRMAN CLARKE THE STEPS WE
ARE TAKING TO RESPOND TO THE COUNCIL'S COMMENTS. BOTH OF THESE
DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO HOUSE AND SENATE OVERSIGHT

COMMITTEES.

ON APRIL 1, 1986, MAYOR BARRY TRANSMITTED THE PRRLIMINARY PLAN
TO THE COMMITTEE ON THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OF THE U.S. HOUSE
OF REPRESENTATIVES AND THE COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN
RESOURCES AND THR COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFPAIRS OF THE U.S.

SENATE FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT.
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THE PLAN WHICH YOU HAVE BEFORE YOU, MR. CHAIRMAN, WAS CREATED

IN FULL COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 4(d) OF THE ACT, WHICH MANDATED

THREE ASPBCTS OF TIIE PROCESS-*

1)

2)

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

WORKING GROUPS BSTABLISHED BY THE SECRETARY OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES AND THE MAYOR BROUGHT TOGETHER
SAINT BLIZABETHS AND DISTRICT OFFICIALS ALONG WITH
PRIVATE PROVIDERS AND FAMILY AND CONSUMER REPRESENTA-

TIVES. 1IN FACT, OVER 400 PERSONS WERE INVOLVED IN
PLANNING AND OVER 800 PATIBATS IN THE SYSTEM WERE ALSO

CONSULTED.

THE MAYOR AND THE SECRETARY ESTABLISHED A LABOR-
MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE THAT INCLUDES THE
EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED BY THE ACT. IT HAS

MET FREQUENTLY DURING THE PAST 16 MONTHS, HAS REVIEWED

38



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

DRAFTS OF ALL PARTS OF THE PLAN AND RELATED DOCUMENTS AND HAS
MADE HELPFUL SUGGESTIONS. THEY WILL CONTINUE TO PARTICIPATE IN
AND MONITOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN, BSPRCISLLY THOSE

ASPECTS WHICH RELATE TO THE TRANSFER OF STAFF.

3) PUBLIC COMMENTS ON THR PLAN HAVE BEEN WIDELY SOLICITED
THROUGH MEETINGS AND FORUMS AND HEARINGS HELD BY THE
MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM REORGANIZATION OFFICE, AS WELL AS
THROUGH THE EXTENSIVE HEARINGS HELD BY THE DISTRICT

COUNCIL UNDER THE CHAIRMANSHIP OF MRS. SHACKLETON.

THIS WIDESPREAD PARTICIPATION, MR. CHAIRMAN, ENSURED THAT THE
PLAN TAKES ADVANTAGE OF A BROAD CROSS~SECTION OF PROFESSIONAL,
CONSUMER AND ORGANIZATIONAL EXPERTISE IN THIS COMMUNITY. WE
HAVE ALSO TAEEN A CLOSE LOOK AT SUCCESSFUL PROGRAMS AROUND THR
COUNTRY AND WEB HAVE. INCORPOGRATRD IH OUR PLANNING THE BEST AND

MOST UP-TO-DATE IDEAS ABOUT COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH.

39
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WE ARE ALSO TAKING ADVANTAGE OF THE SENSIBLE PROVISION OF THE
ACT WHICH ALLOWS THE SHIFT OF SELECTED PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES
AND STAFF RESOURCES FROM SAINT ELIZABETHS TO TRE DISTRICT AND

HAVE SO NOTIFIED THE CONGRESS.

FUNDING

HMR. CHAIRMAN, THE OPERATING FUND PROVISIONS OF P.L. 98-621 HAVE
BEEN HONOPED BY THE DISTRICT GOVERNMENT. WE HAVE INCREASED THE
MBNTAL HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATION BUDGET BY $11.2 MILLION
IN FY 1986 AND BY ANOTHER $12.5 MILLION IN FY 1587, ALTHOUGH
MUCH OF THIS PLANNED INCREASE MUST BE DIRECTED TO THE SUPPORT
OF SAINT ELIZABRTHS HOSPITAL THROUGH FY 1987, BECAUSE oF THE
STAGED WITHDRAWAL OF FEDERAL APPROPRIATIONS, WE HAVE BEBN ABLE
TO ACCOMPLISH SOME SIGNIFICANT INCREASES IN FUNDING FOR

COMMUNITY-BASED CARE.
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WE ARE, HOWEVER, DEEPLY CONCFHNED ABOUT THE IMPACT oF
GRAMM-RUDMAN-HOLLINGS CUTS ON THIS TRANSITION. 1IN SPITE OF THE
FACT THAT TYE DISTRICT AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS AGRE!.D TO A
PLANNkD HEDUCTION IN FEDERAL FUNDS OF OVER $6 MILLION FOR EACH
YEAR OF THE TRANSITION, NEARLY ¢4 MILLION IN ADDITIONAL CUTS
ARE NOW MANDATED FOR FY 1986. THIS HAS A SERIOUS NEGATIVE
EFFECT ON OUR MUTUAL ABILITY TO CARRY OUT TRANSITION
OBLIGATIONS. WE SEEK YOUR SUPPORT, MR. CHAIRMAN, FOR THE
EXEMPTION OF SAINT ELIZABETHS FROM ANY FURTHER CUTS BRYOND THE

PLANNED AND AGREED TO REDUCTIONS EACH YEAR OF TRANSITION.

BL. v i.5_ AND GRGLUNDS

IN ACCORD WITH SECTION 8 OF P.L. 98-621, WE HAVE IDENTIFIERD IN
THE PRELIMINARY PLAN THE PLANT TO BE TRANSFERRED TO THE

DISTRICT TO PROVIDE MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES: ALL OF THE GROUNDS
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AND FACILITIES BAST OF MARTIN LUTHER KING AVENUE AND SOME OF
THE WEST SIDE INFRASTRUCTURE SYSTEMS THAT SUPPORT THE EAST
SIDE. IT WILL ALSO BE NECESSARY FOR THE DISTRICT TO OCCUPY
TEMPORARILY SOME OF THE WEST SIDE BUILDINGS WHILE RENOVATIONS

ARE UNDER WAY AND THE INITIAL PLAN IS BEING IMPLEMENTED.

THE MAYOR HAS ESTABLISHED A TASK FORCE TO CONSIDER ALTERNATIVE
USES FOR THE EAST SIDE. A MASTER PLAN PROPOSAL WILL BE

FORTHCOMING UNDER THE TERMS OF THE ACT.

WE ARE DEEPLY CONCERNED, HOWEVER, ABOUT THE DETERIORATED
CONDITION OF THE BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE HOSPITAL
AT THE TIME OF TRANSFER. THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT HAS NOW
COMPLETED A FACILITY AUDIT WHICH IDENTIFIES MINIMUM COSTS FOR
RENOVATIONS TO MEET THE MANDATED CODE COMPLIANCE STANDARDS FOR
BUILDINGS TO BECOME PART OF THE MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM. WE

BELIEVE THE AMOUNT NECESSARY FOR AN APPROPRIATE RENOVATION OF

ERIC
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THE MAYOR RAS ESTABLISHED A TASK FORCE TO CONSIDER ALTERNATIVE
USRS FOR THE EAST SIDE. A MASTER PLAN PROPOSAL WILL BE

FORTRCOMING UNDER THE TERMS OF THE ACT.

WE ARE DEEPLY CONCERNED, HOWEVER, ABOUT THE DETERIORATED
CONDITION OF THE BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE HOSPITAL
AT THE TIME OF TRANSFER. THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT RAS NOW
COMPLETED A FACILITY AUDIT WHICH IDENTIFIES MINIMUM COSTS FOR
RENOVATIONS TO MEET TRE MANDATED CODE COMPLIANCE STANDARDS FOR
BUILDINGS TO BECOME PART OF TRE MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM. WE

BELIEVE THE AMOUNT NECESSARY FOR AN APPROPRIATE RENOVATION OF
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THE MAYOR RAS ESTABLISHED A TASK FORCE TO CONSIDER ALTERN
USEs FOR THE EAST SIDE. A MASTER PLAN PROPOSAL WIL

FORTRCOMING UNDER THE TERMS OF THE ACT.

WE ARE DERPLY CONCERNED, HOWEVER, ABOUT THE DRTERIO
CONDITION OF THE BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE HOS
AT THE TIME OF TRANSFER. THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT RAS
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Mr. FAuNTROY. Ms. Fleming.

TESTIMONY OF VIRGINIA C. FLEMING, DIRECTOR, MENTAL
HEALTH SYSTEMS REORGANIZATION OFFICE, DEPARTMENT
OF HUMAN SERVICES, GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF CO-
LUMBIA

- Ms. FLemiNg. Mr. Chairman, I'm glad to have the opportunity

this morning to highlight some of tne features that respond to the
particular questions that the committee has sent to us, and they go
to four or five ways in which the plan does respond to the man-
dates of Public Law 98-621. -

First, just one note that is not in the testimony, but the timeta-
ble of the—that is mandated in Public Law 98-621 is fully met to
date. We have submitted the plan to all the review processes on
time and had the public hearings required, and all of the process
and timetable aspects of the plan are in full compliance with
Public Law 98-621.

Now among the program mandates, the first and most important
is, of course, the compliance with the Dixon decree. I have uoted in
the testimony that you will receive later this morning a certain un-
derstandable impatience on the part of the Dixon committee about
the pace at which the new plan is getting put into effect and the
changes that will come about under the plan.

I just want to re—and you that, until October 1, 1987, the District
will not be in churge of the comznrehensive mental health services
and we, therefore, designed a plan which accepts on that first day
of that first year of total District management some things which
Evill not be completely fixed or finished or comprehensive on that

ay.

The Congress quite properly suggested that there should be a
plan—a comprehensive system in place by 1991, and gave us this
period of 4 years after 1987, in which we would be increasing the
outreach. .

So I just want to point out that the system design that we'’re
talking about and that is in the published plan is for the first year
of comprehensive operations, and there’s a great deal of emphasis
in it on some of the very important and difficult transfer problems,
our interest and attention to smooth transition for patients already
in the system, before we reach out to add on to the number of pa-
tients in the system.

For example, we believe it is terribly important that patient care
not be disrupted anymore than it has to be at this very critical
point, and that we will, therefore, pay a great deal of attention to
the patient and staff transfer in the first few months before we
begin trying to increase the number of people enrolled in the
system.

Now the way in which the plan will address the Dixon class, we
think, is a very exciting comprehensive new system. It’s a unified—
it will be a unified adult services administration that will combine
both inpatienf, and outpatient services.

Many cf the problems that now plague the system have to do
with the fact that it is still a divided system, and the connections

™
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and continuity between inpatient and outpatient care will be re-
solved in the new model. ‘

The plan focuses its priority on the most seriously disabled
people through the newly designed community support system.
Over 90 percent of the expenditures on adult patients will be on

. Dixon class patients. That is a dramatic increase in priority to the
Dixon class gver what now exists in the system.
By reconfiguring current St. Elizabeths programs into this—the
- new and .more appropriate care which is, after all, the mandate of
the Dixon- decision tgat patients be served in the least restrictive
and most appropriate setting, we will make a dramatic change in
that first year, increasing the number of patients served in appro-
priate, as opposed to inappropriate, levels of care.
. This will in turn release some funds which will be redirected, in
addition to the new funds which we are increasingly spending on
communt%-based care each year. So that the—in the more inten-
siveliy;. staffed day hospitals, crisis beds and emergency case aides
for those in an acufe piase of illness, ani(f)sychotherapy, day treat-
ment .and rehabilitation arrog‘rams linked to supervised and sup-
ported housing, vocational training and recreational programs for
those in growth and training. _

The continuity of care will be ensured by the presence of 40 new
case managers, another dramatic change in services for Dixon class
patients modeled on successful programs around the country and
on, to some extent, to service management contracts that we have
installed over the last 2 years in the District that have an extreme-
ly good track record. For example, the prevailing return to hospital
rate for all patients is about something over 50 percent now. In our
new service management contract, that ratio is down to 3 percent,
a very. significant increase in successful community-based trainin,
that has taken pluce over the last couple of years and is the mode
upon which we are proceeding, to a large extent, in the outpatient
services for the Dixon class patients.

The prelimi plan also projects a total of 700 new suy-.vised
or supported residential facilities for these patients over the 6-year
period. That is a doubling of the present number, again a very dra-
matic increase in the number of supported residential opportuni-
ties that will make possible these alternatives to institutionaliza-
tion.

We have a very exciting new commitment from our housing de-
{)artment, so that the supply of congregate housing for the mental-
y disabled should be increasing significantly in each of the next 6
years.

Another essential new ingrecient is the expansion of vocational
training opportunities. We have again made a new agreement with
our vocaticzal training, our rehabilitation services administration,
for a new supported employment program for the Dixon class pa-
tients, which is a model that has proven very successful in a couple
of Otli:; cities and which we are adopting and incorporating into
our plan.

The second important mandate in Public Law 98-621 is the pro-
vision of direct services for the homeless mentally ill. We all under-
stand that, even with a more active case management system and
a greater array of services and more continuity of care, there are
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still some individuals who are reluctant to accept professional care
or dparticipate in organized day treatment or therapy programs,
and who won’t get the help that they need unless there’s a very
active, aggressive outreach program for them.

We believe that taking on this responsibility is very important.
We have doubled this year and will double again next year and
plan to double again in 1988 in the 1988 planning budget, which, of
course, hasn’t been through the city council yet. But our planning
budget for the new mental health services has staged increases in
direct, aggressive outreach services to the clinics, to the shelters,
on the streets; and they are in part modeled on the community out-
reach branches which we have already begun to do on the model so
successfully demonstrated by Dr. Stein in Madison, WI, and in part
bﬁns(me other contract programs that deliver direct services in the
clinics and in mobile vans on the street. o

We have not estimated in the first year of the plan—it is quite
true: We have not estimated enough services for what we-judge to
be the very homeless mentally ill person in the city. We believe, in
the first place, that it takes a considerable amount of time to devel-
op the staff capacity to do this rather difficult, nontraditional serv-
ice. We plan to increase it, as I say, to double that capacity each
year, which we think is a manageable set of targets.

We also believe that, in the first year, fiscal year 1988, that we
have to give, as we say, a great deal of attention to the patients
already enrolled in the system. So that by reaching out to new pa-
tients, we don’t neglect those patients that are already getting
care.

We have also, we believe, very successfully met the obligations in
the act to the employees of the hospital. The personnel working
groups are working very hard to put in place all of the ingredients
of that staff transfer. The patients rights provisions in the bill—We
have designed a very extensive and elaborate internal and external
advocacy program. We think that will be a very strong model in
that respect.

We have a design for a new quality assurance system based on
the new management information system, which is 2lso well under-
way, a systemwide new management information system that
makes possible the kind of data and inform-+*ion that in turn
makes quality assurance possible, because you have accurate data
against which to measure the outcomes of care.

On the final mandate of the bill that I waut to highlight this
morning has to do with cost effectiveness to thr city. Mr. Rivers is
also—of the system. Mr. Rivers has mentioned our grave concern
with actthe condition of the buildings which has a cost effectiveness
impact.

We are also deeply concerned about the condi o of the power-
plani. You have, Mr. Chairman, received a lettzr detailing that
which we would like to ask be mad. part of the record, and our
recommendations on that point.
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It’s terribly important that we don’t waste on the buildings, that
are so expensive to maintain, the money that we should be spend-
ing on patient care. So that is why we want to emphasize these
pieces of unfinished business about capital construction.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .

; l[il‘he] prepared statement and attachments of Ms. Fleming
ollow:
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STATEMENT OF -
vxnciuia C. FLEMING
DIRECTOR, MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM REORGANIZATION OFFICE
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
before the
COMMITTEE ON THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
SUBCOMMITTEE ON FISCAL AFFAIRS AND HEALTH
U. S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

May 22, 1986
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I appreciate this opportunity to describe for the Committee
several aspects of the Preliminary System Implementation Plan
which ensure that programs in the comprehensive mental health

system will comply fully with the mandates of P. L. 98-621.

*l. Among the most important mandates is that the comprehensive

system comply with the court consent decree in Dixon v. Bowen.

The Preliminary Plan assures this compliance in several ways.

First, a unified Adult Services Administration will be fully
accountable for both inpatient and :uatpatient services, closing
the gap between hospital and aftercare programs. That
Administration will move beyond the comprehensive center model
of the last 20 years to focus its priority on the most
seri&usly disabled patients through the.newly designed
Community Support System. Over 90 percent of expenditures on
adult patients will be concentrated on persons in the Dixon

class at most serious risk of hospitalization.

By reconfiguring current Saint Elizabeths Hospital programs
into the appropriate hospital, nursing and residential levels
of care, funds and staff will be available for reallocation to
a new continuum of community based programs: (a) more
intensively staffed day hospitals, crisis beds and emergency
case aides for those in an acute phase of illness, and (b)
prychotherapy, day treatment and rehabilitation programs

linked to supervised and supported housing, vocational training
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and recreational programs for those ready for growth and
training. Continuity of care will be ensured by the presence
of 40 new case managers in the community centers and by

expansion of the present service management contracts which

“have maintained long-institutionalized patients in the

community over the past two years with extraordinary success.
A single point of entry into the system, individual treatment
Plans and frequent case consultations will prevent the

fragmentation and lack of continuity that now keep care from

being fully effective.

The Preliminary Plan érojects a total of 700 new supervised or
supported residential facilities for these patients over the
six year period, made possible by an array of new housing
initiatives including expansion of the state SST supplement,
technical assistance for epecial housing development and
programs to encourage apartment living arrangements in addition
to group homes. Treatment in the leaét restrictive setting is
made possible by this developnent of alternatives to
institutional care. Aan equally important new ingredient is
expansion of vocational training and supported employment
opportunities for disabled patients, to enable them to lead

more independent lives in the community,

2, A second important mandate is the provision of direct

services for the homeless mentally ill.
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Even with active case management, some individuals who are

reluctant to accept professional care or to participate in

organized day treatment or therapy programs will not receive

the help they need uniess the mental health system reaches out

with active service delivery to such persons in shelters or on

the streets. The new comprehensive mental health system will

use a combination of approaches to such persons:

3.

(a) Community Outreach Teams designed on the Madison,
Wisconsin model will continue to be based in one or more
community centers to maintain contact with homeless patients
wherever they may be until they are ready for more
traditional services;

(b) contract services will expand to provide additional
psychiatric care in ghelters and to fund community
agencies to provide services and housing assistance to
homeless persons who are mentally i11;

(c) one or more mental health professionals will join the
mobile van to be sponsored by the Commission on Public
Health to reach out to those who live outside of shelters;

(d) a greatly expanded emergency services mobile outreach
staff will be available because of the merger of the two
existing emergency services into one centralized unit, that
will be on call to respond to homeless persons in need of
acute care, providing intensive medical care and crisis
stabilization beds or hospitalization when necessary, and

(d) “hese gervices will be evaluated and strengthened by a

ccordinator for mental health care to homeless people at the
highest level of the Commission.

The -lan also ensures that the transition to a comprehensive

District system is being carried out with maximum consideration

for the interests of employees of the Hospital, and provides a

right-of-first-refusal to such employees for employment at



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

48

comparable levels in positions created under the Plan.

We have determined that in order to staff the new comprehensive
service system, we will require about 2,000 new employees in the
Department of Human Services and about 400 new employees in other
support services, as well as new services purchased through
contracts with District agencies and hospitals. During the summer
of 1987, all of the new positions will be offered first to current
Saint Elizabeths employees. We are also working with the federal
government to carry out the provisions of the law which ensure that
any remaining employees are absorbed into vacancies in related
service systems. A working group of federal and District officials
is working carefully to ensure that all the provisions of Sections

6 and 7 of the Act are fully net.

4. Patient rights in the new system will be protected by an
extensive internal advocacy system and by expansion of the present
contract with the District's protection and advocacy agency. 1In
addition, the rights of patients in the Dixon c¢lass will continue

to be represented and protected under the court decree.

5. The development of a new quality assurance system,
strengthened by a comprehensive Management Information System
now being developed, will enable the new system to monitor and

enforce policy, performance and outcome goals. All facilities

(o)
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in the new system are expected to be licensed and certified for
reimbursement by the time of the transfer and the District will

apply for appropriate accreditation surv~eys to be staged over

‘the transition period.

6. Finally, the cost-effectiveness of the new system will be
enhanced by the integration of services to eliminate
duplication and by the shift of resources to community-based

care to prevent unnecessary institutionalization.

Another important step toward cost effective care is the
consolidation of administrative and institutional services of
the new Commission on Mental Health in 20 major buildings on
115 acres of the Saint Elizabeths site east of Martin Luther
King Jr. Avenue. This complex includes all the patient care
buildings targeted in the Congressionally approved capital
project under way since 1976. It includes the 10 patient care
buildings which will have been renovated by the time of
transfer as well as 4 other major patient care buildings and a
number of day care and support facilities which still require

major renovation.

A serious issue of cost-effectiveness as well as safety :i- also
presented by the condition of the power plant at Saint
Elizabeths. This problem is fully outlined in Mr. Rivers'

P
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recent letter to you, Mr. Chairman, and a copy is attached to
this testimony. The replacement of this plant at the earliest
opportunity is essential.

In summary, the District's Preliminary Plan completely
restructures services to mentally ill residents of the District
and creates a fully integrated, comprehensive system. We do
not underestimate the amount of work which lies ahead to assure
a smooth transition for patients and staff, but the Plan
provides a clear blueprint which acknowledges the difficulties
and provides practical steps to overcome them. We are
heartened by the widespread support which the plan has alr.-.dy
received and by the number of persons already deeply engaged in
its implementation. We will be pleased to answer any questions

which you may have.
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801 Worth Capitol Street, N.E.

APR 10 1985 Buite 700

The Hcorable Waliter E. Yav-troy
U.8. Nouse ¢f Representatives

135 Raybrrm House Of. ice Building
Washington, D.C. 20818

Dear Congressman Fauntroy:

I write this letter to outline for you the untenabla
situatior vith respect tc the Saint Elixabeths Nospitel
(8sB) power plant and related energy iasues which require
corre_tive actton in advance of thc trensfer of the hospital
tc the District Government, .

Mayo - Barry forwarded to the appropriate congressionmal
committees a full outline of ' ‘1 capital budgat issues at
the hospiial as part of the irunsmittal of the entire Pre-
liminury Montal Kealth Plan om April 1, 1986. Xn view of
your specific interest in the power pient and temperaturs
contrcl issues, we arc providing at your request, the

following alditional analysis e~4 recommendations.

In recent months, we havo seen dramatic exanples cf serious
problems involving the power plont and temperature controls.
¥irst, a series of boiler breakdowns culminated i» & six-
hour lose of service on Christmas Day. Additional breakdowas
have occurred twice since Christmas, includiag the blow-omt
of ons of the turbines within the last few weeks. Becond,
the Inck of temperature controls inm both patient core and
aduiniotrative bnildings causes unhealtiy snd wasteful com-
ditions throughout the hospitel. The federal government
should correct these probioms before the trensfer ef

responsibility for these facilitius.

Because meny areas of the hospital are ovorheated, gtaff
routinely turn on air conditioners and open windows in mid-
winter. - This appallingly wasteful practice is made necessezy
by the lack of adequate temperature controls in hospital
buildings. .
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8ince July of last year we bhave .attempted to correct this
problem by working out a conmtractual ngreement with the U.S.
Department of Health mnd Human Services (DHES) that would
allow replacement of exisiing temporature controls on all

:relevant BSBEH bui'dings wi*h state-of-the-art controls. Tha

installation of such equipment would significantly reducs
fuel consumption and dramatically improve the comfort of
both patients and employees. Further, the contract for the
installation and monitoring of this equipment would require
no start-up costs or capital outlays by either the federal
or District government. The contractor would be paid a
percentage of the difference between fuel costs prior to and
after installation.

VWe feel a project of this type could and should be imple-
mented before next fall. Because BEH is still a federal
property, the contract cannot be executed without federal
consent and participation. Thus far we have not been adle
to reach agreement with DHES on @ specific approach which
would satisfy legel advisors. Our fear is that further
dealays will result in apother winter at SEH with unneces-
sarily high fucl bills and oxcessive room temperatures.

Regarding the SEH power plant, we have been advised that the
boilers ere five years behind the rocommended replacement
schedule. The recently complsiad federal audit indicates
that aen extreordinery amount of “echanical and electrical
work would be necessary to bring the power plant up to code
coxpliance. The audit estimates that this work will cost
about $3 millinn and includes replaciiig three boilers which
are estinated to be beyond their usefulnaess. i

The power plant consists of five boilers installed between
1964 and 1971. Two of the oldest boilers are out of servi:ze
and are being retnbed. The third is out of service and
beyond repair. The recent breakdowns are attributed to the
two pewar boilers which are scheduled to be reconditioned
this summer. Even cfter reconditioning the boilers, there
will still be a high risk of shut-downs. The history of the
povwer plant indicated that the expected 1ife span of the
existing boilers may fall far short of average life expec-

;. 'tancy due to the high demand which is placed on them. 1In

addition, lebor and maintenance costs will remain high
because of the age of the boilers. Currently, it takes the
equivalent of 30 full-time employees to operate the _power
plant at a cost of $839,000 per year. . o

In spite of this information, no replece-ent funds have been
allocated for mnew boilers. In fact, current plans are to
spend as much es $375,000 between now and the time of the

-
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transfer to retube and othsrwise refurbish bolleri nbicb are
past their prime. We bolisve that current fsderal atrategy

. is pot ceost-effactive and will only rssult in pushing major

power plant problems forward into the period of District
ownership.

Our strategy, which is backsd by un independent sngineering
atudy, agrees with the facility audit recommendation of
replacing the boilers and goss further by calling for the
construction of a new power plant at a cost of $3.6 million
with a pay back period of 1.8 years. The relatively ahort
Pay back pericd is the result of considerable fuel savings
rerulting from sfficisnt boilers and modern temperaturs
copirols. Additionally, because a pew power plant will
require less maintenance, we estimate power plant personnel
conts will be reduced by about $320,000 per ysar.

A new plant will provide boiler efficienciss in the range of
85 to 90 percent as comparsd to the present 70 to 75 percent.
New, more efficient designs of fans, pumps, turbines and
heat exchangers over the last 20 years will contribute to
improvements in ovsrall plant efficiency. Improvements in
burner designs provide better combustion efficiency, result-
ing in lower operating costs, less air pollution and rsduced
damage to internal componsnts.

We believe that plant replacement is a far more cost-
offective solution, even thougih the cost of building a new
Plint will be slightly highsr. 1 = present patchwork systea
of wmaintenance is draining funds away from capital intended
to novats patient care buildings. PFurthsr, ths current
fed.ral repair strategy appears to be in conflict with ths
faderally-sponsored audit which recommends boiler rsplace-
ment. Any strategy that advocates continuing to fix and use
boilers that ars beyond their usefulness is costly and re-
presents a ~ontinued risk to patient safsty and comfort.

Based on oir analysis of ths power plant and temperaturs
controls at SEH, I request gpscial assistance from you to do
the following: ’

..

o 1. Encourage the federal government to quickly rssolve

all issues which now impede the selection of a con-
tractor to install new temperature controls on. BREH
buildings; Lo

. 2. Urge the federal government to allocate approximatsly
$300,000 for architectural and engineering designs
for a new power piant (The capital authority for
this allocation is aiready in placs. Special
instructions to procure this design ‘on an emergency



basis and, if necessary, o non-competitive basis are
needed in order to complete the design phase by
September 1886; and

3. Work with Nouse and Seuate appropriations committees
to ensure that the $3.6 million cost of the new power
plant ia placed in a bill mppropriating these capitel
costs in FY 1987.

I believe these ections will rasult in m level of environ-
mental aafety at Saint Elirabeths Hospital consistent with
the federal obligation to its institution at the time of
transfer. I welcome your interenst and concern on this
important aubject. Please let me know if I can provide
further information.

Sincerely,

LA .
¥ur/ A Q.
David E. Rivers
Director

cc: The Eonorable Ronald V. Dellums
Ron Willis
John Gnorski
Dwight 8. Cropp
Thomas Downs
William Prescott
Wilford Forbush
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Mr. FaunTRrOY. Ms. Fleming, I want to thank you. We've been
aware of your hard work in this area over the years and your com-
mitment and dedication to assuring that we do deliver quality
mental health services to all the citizens of the District of Colum-
bia. I just want you to know that I, for one, appreciate it. I appreci-
ate your work. :

. G. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. FAunTROY. You've answered a number of the questions that
I had in mind in connection with section 2 of Public Law 98-621,
which has to do with a number of the details that we were con-
cerned about.

You mentioned particularly the issue that has become a frent-
burner issue in recent months, that of the homeless. We held hear-
ings here in this committee about a year ago to take \estimony
from experts on the problems of the homeless around the country,
and one of the questions raised and answered was how effective are
large facilities for housing and caring for the homeless.

We have seen the Second Street facility made available for ren-
ovation-as a rather large facility, and I have been somewhat con-
cerned about the extent to which we’re going to be sble to cover
the mental health needs through government of the persons there.

I have two questions: One, what are we doing pursuant to the di-
rective in section 2 that we develop a continuum of inpatient and
outpatient mental health care for the scattered site idea?

Ms. FLEMING. Reaching out to the homeless, we think, requires a
combination of approaches, Mr. Chairman. We have fried to put in
place in the shelters clinical services, psychiatric services. We have
now the capacity to visit out of our crisis branch and through vol-
unteer psychiatrists and throngh some of the psychiatrict residents
at St. Elizabeths. We are providing direct onsite services in almost
all of the 12 publicly supported shelters in the city now. Now that
is just a beginning.

e also believe that you have to go to where people are on the
street, and the commission on public heslth is now organizing a
van which wiil moeve out in connection with the food services that
are also being offered by mobile vans, and will try to deliver to
people on the street frontline health and mental health services.
That is another new initiative the department is undertaking this
year.

However, we put most of our emphasis on trying to return chron-
ically mentally ill patients who are homeless to a more stable envi-
ronment and a more stable treatment. We believe that most of our
efforis should be directed toward what some people call main-
stream care.

It is not always easy to do that with people who are resistant to
treatment, but there are special skills, special staff skills that can
be developed, and special kinds of housing that are more acceptuble
to homeless mentally ill pecple than others.

For example, we 11ind that very few people we work with who are
homeless want to live in group-home settings. They have much
more of a commitment to independence, personal independence,
and they prefer apartment settings.

We have two demonstration programs we hope to launch this fall
that will do a very specialized kind of housing and treatment and

.t
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case-management projects to reach out, in one case, to homeless—
in both cages, actually, to homeless mentally ill women who are
particularly vulnerable group of that pulation.

So we are experimenting with small scale efforts tailored to the
particular—It is not a homogeneous group, as you know, Mr. Chair-
man, and there are different things needed for different groups.
That’s what we’re trying to do. .

Mr. Rivers. Mr. Chairman, this is also a major concern. Obvious-
ly, we try to do a lot of outpatient homelessness—of mentally re-
tarded persons in the community, but there is also attached to that
a community reaction. It’s not easy to open up whether you do
scattered site, whether it be a small facility, a large facility.

We are having some major opposition from community grouns in
terms of opening up shelters or other facilities to serve our ciient
population. So it is a problem overall in terms of doing—of opening
up any shelter.

Mr. FAuNTROY. Has the Federal Government honored its commit-
ment fiscally over the last—during this period? What happened, for
example, on the supplemental $135 million?

Ms. FLEMING. Well, there’s a little bit complicated fiscal situa-
tion, Mr. Chairman, in that when the agreement that we all made
in 1984 and the funding chart went forward, it was based on an
expectation of pay rates at St. Elizabeths Hospital as in all Federal
agencies which were at the time predicated on a 5-percent pay cut.

The Congress did not accept that Presidential proposal and put
back the pay scale. So that at St. Elizabeths there has always been,
since in 1986 and 1987, a shortfall of a couple of million dollars,
which resulted from the fact that Federal agencies were all expect-
ed to absorb that shortfall.

That was a manageable deficit. When you put the Gramm-
Rudman cuts on top of that, the additional $3.7 million that you've
Jjust been hearing about, it makes a shortfall dig_ainst ,our projected
6-year agreements that becomes increasingly difficult to handle.

We agree with the superintendent's testimony that patient care
has not been totally disrupted—that it is being managed at the hos-
pital. But the things that are being deferred are, from our point of
view, some very essential things about transition.

It is possible, for example, that if the Gramrm-Rudman cuts con-
tinue into fiscal—or happen again in 1987, even though the Presi-
dent’s budget honors the agreement, we don’t know what’s going to
happen during 1987. Any additional cuts in 1987 would defer into
fiscal year 1988 a great many expenditures, which would then
become a full District responsibility, thus pushing forward into the
District’s budget things which should have been expended by the
Federal Government in 1986 and 1987.

The management informaticn system, for example, upon which
80 much of our mutual ability to demonstrate these changes and
assure quality in the system, for example, has already been set
back by these shortfalls. We feel very strongly that any further
Impact of Gramm-Rudman would be very difficult for us to handle.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Counsel has a related question on this.

Mr. WiLus. If we could, on the scattered site that the chairman
raised, Mr. Rivers pointed out that there’s been a reaction from the
community which is true not only here, but I understand across
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the Nation. Are you planning educational seminars for the commu-
nity itself so that fo]ﬁs understand who’s coming in, who they are,
and more importantly, who they’re not, to ease this transition?

Mr. Rivers. As part of our ongoing process, we provide the edu-
cation and training for the commumty group, to brief them in
terms of what kind of facility would be m there, and a detailed de-
scription of the population to be housed within the facility. That
works sometimes, #nd sometimes it doesn’t. People—they will sup-
port your programs in terms of your intent, but they would prefer
that the community or shelter be located within another neighbor-
hood other than their own.

So it is a problem, but we do and we will provide education in
terms of who the population would be that will be moved into the
community. '

Mr. WiLL1s. This would be through the ANC process?

Mr. Rivers. Yes.

Ms. FrLemiNG. We also have an NIMH funded community support
grogram grant, and this year MHSA has launched a particular

roader effort, communitywide effort, using some people who are
rather skillful at this and who have a great deal of the best nation-
al information to counteract some of the mythology. For example,
the impact on property taxes just is not demonstrated in fact, al-
though People continue to think that it does have such an impact.

So we're trying to pick out some of these broad factual issues to
help educate people in the community about—that it really is a
community responsibility and does not have a negative impact.

Mr. WiLLis. One more question, Mr. Chairman. Then I'll turn to
you. You’ll recall, Mr. Chairman, that we had quite a discussion in
Anacostia in Movember about the number of sites that are being
placed in particular wards. Our notion of a scattered plan is truly
to scatter it throughout all of the wards within the District of Co-
lumbia and not have them concentrated in one area.

What are you doing, and how is the plan going to prevent the
kind of concentration that in the past has occurred?

Ms. FLEMING. Well, we share the belief that smaliler shelters are
better than large concentrations, but we again just underline the
belief that permanent or at best, second stage housing, is the real
answer where you scatter people into apartments or clustered situ-
ations that are not shelters at all but are real homes. And they can
be supervised and supported, and they can have strong elements of
case management and mental health treatment in them, but they
become the beginning of a real home rather than a shelter.

That is the ultimate desirable goal.

Mr. WiLLis. Now these would be scattered throughout the city?

Ms. FLEMmiNG. Scattered—yes, yes; just as we propose to scatter
all housing. Right.

Mr. WiLLis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Fauntroy. Thank you. Finally, I had asked HHS and St.
Elizabeths Hospital te bring us up to date on the future programs
for patients with a dual diagnosis, both mental retardation and
psychiatric disorders. What is the city planning as a part of its new
system to meet the needs of this population?

Ms. FLEMING. It's a very important question, Mr. Chairman. We
last year identified in the course of looking at the patient popula-
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tion at St. Elizabeths and elsewhere—identified a group of patients
at the hospital, probably as many as 150 of them, who were either
{Jri;ll;arily mentai)ly retarded or both mentally retarded and mental-
y ill.

We did not at the time of the publication of the preliminary plan
have a very detailed proposal about that. We have had, however,
over the last couple of months a task force working on that issue,
and we've come forth with a set of things that need to happen.

What we have really is a system for the mentally retarded which
has become quite developed and community based over the last 3
or 4 years, and a mental health system which is going in the same
direction; but we have not yei developed the professional capacity.
We don’t have the staff that are trained in both skills as yet, and
we don’t have the continnuum of care as yet, although the principles
are exactly the same.

We do—the task force report will be available in about 6 weeks,
and we do estimate that among the most serious needs will be a
need for training of staff and, of course, the funding that’s neces-
sary to release staff to get that training. So those are both the
training—the development of curriculum itself. We think probably
over 3 years it may cost us as much as $500,000 in each of those
years to develop that curriculum, to institutionalize it in one of our
local universities or institutions, and to see to it that a sufficient
number of staff in both systems has these skills, and that the con-
tinuum of care for that group is developed.

As I say, we'll be glad to share that report witk you in about 6 or
8 weeks time.

Mr. FAunNTROY. I would appreciate your sending it to us as soon
as it is completed. :

Mr. Rivers and Ms. Fleming, I want to thank you so much for
presenting us with an excellent overview regarding the mental
health, the reorganization preliminary plan.

I know you are aware that section 8(b) of the law states that the
Mayor shall prepare and submit to the committee on or before Oc-
tober 1, 1991, a master plan for use of all real property and so forth
not transferred or excluded to subsection (a). I look forward to that
legislative package and will schedule hearings at that time.

I want to assure all of the interested parties that, at the appro-
priate time, we will make a very—take a very close look at that,
and wili consider its effect on the overall delivery of mental health
services.

Thank you so very much for your testimony.-

Mr. FAunNTROY. We come now to a high point of our hearing
today. We are pleased to have as our next witness the Honorable
Polly Shackleton, council member from ward 3 of the District of
Columbia.

Ms. Shackleton has served the citizens of the District of Colum-
bia for many years, the last 11 of which have been as council
person for. ward 3. During that time she has been a champion of
the disenfranchised and the mentally ill. Long before homelessness
moved from the streets to the stage, Polly Shackleton was calling
for changes in the way the Federal and local governments are
meeting their needs.
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Many of the more popular social programs we have come to take
for granted were new and innovative when Ms. Shackleton intro-
duced them to members of the council. Her personal involvement
in the difficult question surrounding St. Elizabeths Hospital and its
proper place sz a part of the District of Columbia governmental
mental healtl rogram dates back to 1969, as I recall.

I recaii, u: our shaping of the very first Washington agenda,
leaning very heavily on Ms. Shackleton for guidance and direction
as to how we should be moving in this area. In 1970, she served as
a member of distinction of the Rome Commission, a Presidentially
-appointed body established to give direction as to whether, when
and how St. Elizabeths Hospital should be made a part of the Dis-
trict mental health system.

In 1980, she served on a task force created by the Department of
Health and Human Services, then Secretary Patricia Harris and
the Mayor of the District of Columbia. So her appearance before
this committee and the District of Columbia probations on the St.
Elizabeths Hospital question of areas which came before the Dis-
trict of Columbia Council certainly have enlightened and enriched
the legislative process and all of us.

I know my colleagues on this committee, many of whom are very
committed to a bill at this time on trade relations with which Ms.
Shackleten is certainly not unfamiliar, join me in praising you for
the kind of leadership you've given, the kind of unceasing work
that you have given to this city and to, indeed, the Nation on this
question. And as you retire, Polly, we wish you the very best and
want you to know that we will miss your wisdom and your insights
as we carry on the work of providing citizens of our great city the
kind of first-rate services that they need and deserve, that you've
already advocated. So I'm very happy to have you and look forward
to your testimony.

TESTIMONY OF HON. POLLY SHACKLFTON, COUNCIL MEMBER,
COUNCIL OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Ms. SuackLETON. Well, thenk you very much, Mr. Chairman. I
certainly appreciate your kind words. You and I have worked close-
ly together, even before we were both on the appointed city council.
I think, years before that, we fought freeways. We did kinds c¢f
things together, and of course, you were the vice chairman of that
appointed council which I served with you on. So we’ve been close,
and I appreciate certainly your very kind words and your continu-
ing concern in all our Sp;roblems. I don’t know what we’d do without
you up here, frankly. So I just want to say——

Mr. FaunTrOY. Thank you so very much, Polly. You know, you
just remind me, it has been 20 years since we went over to the
White House. Wasn’t that some day?

Ms, SHACKLETON. Yes; it’s a long time ago, and we've both been
working at it. Even though I am not running for reelection and
will not be on the council after the end of this year, the end of my
term, I want to assure you that I will continue my interest and
concerns and will be working with you and others on many of the
issues that I've been involved in over the years.

Mr. FaunTroY. Thank you.
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Ms. SHackLETON. I will not read the first paragraph of my state-
ment, beceuse you said some more than I have here, actually. But I
do want tc say that I fully—as chairman of the council’s committee
on humaa services, I fully support the transfer of authority to the
District government for a comprehensive mental health system and
the creation of a commission on mental health within the D.C. De-
partraent of Human Services to carry out the new responsibility.

Many of the problems which have plagued the divided system
over the yeers, I believe, can be resolved by unifying and integrat-
ing services in this way.

Our committee—my committee, which I chair, held 2 days of
public hearings in January, giving a broad opportunity to profes-
sionals and intevested individuals and organizations to comment on
the plan. It is clear that there is widespread support for the pro-
posed organization and structure of the commission on mental
health and for the principles which guide its emphasis on two prin-
i:iplia]l grc:lgps of clients, children and youth, and chronically mental-
y ill adults.

My committee also noted the widespread participation of many
family members, professionals, and organizations in the develop-
ment of the plan. This will ensure that our system is designed to
meet the needs of our population and to achieve the goals set by
the community for mental hes}*h services.

In the resolution which our committee proposed and was passed
by the council on February 28, of this year, we noted several areas
which needed further attenticn. I think Xou’ve already—you, and
Ms. Fleming has responded, have already addressed the concern
about the patients with the dual diagnosis of mental retardation
and mentai illness, and also about patients who are both mentally
ill and substance abusing.

I'm advised that in both these areas the reorganization office, as
Ms. Fleming stated, together is working on that. We also, in our
resolution from the committee—we requested detailed cost and rev-
enue data in the final plan, and are particularly interested in re-
viewing the financing of children’s programs across the D.C. De-
partment of Human Services and the public schools.

The council takes a keen interest in the development of plans for
that part of the St. Elizabeths campus which will not be used di-
rectly by the mental health system. The Mayor has now estab-
lished a task force to assist him in the development of guidelines
q.;llil proposals, and we expect to review his recommendations in the
tall.
Our deepest concern, of course, relates to the potential cuts
under Gramm-Rudman, and you've already gone into that in
dﬁtail. So I won'’t repeat it, but we are very, very disturbed about
that.

I also—I would hope, and I'm sure you’re going to do everything
you can to prevent further harm in our effort by an instruction
from Congress to the Federal Executive to exempt the Gramm-
Rudman actions.

We also, which has been mentioned, urge your attention and su
port for the funding of the renovation of the St. Elizabeths facili-
ties, which will be transferred to the District, and certainly the
Federal Government must not pass along an unfinished commit-
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ment to bringing these facilities up to appropriate treatment stand-
ards—standards that will meet the test of accreditation.

Your committee, Mr. Chairman, took the lead in mandating the
Federal commitment to this renovation in 1976, and I know we can
count on you to pursue the task until it is complete.

In closing, let me repeat that the District Council is menitoring
the development of this comprehensive mental health system for
our community with care and diligence. We are satisfied that the
work is proceeding on the required timetable, and is in full compli-
ance with the mandates of Public Law 98-621 and with all applica-
ble District statutes.

We look forward to receiving the final plan from the Mayor in
October of this year and to supporting the assumption of full re-
sponsibility next year.

Again, our most serious concerns are that the Federal Govern-
ment is going to welch on its commitments, and we know that you
will do everything possible to prevent that.

I thank you for having the opportunity to present our views this
morning.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Shackleton follows:]
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POLLY SHACKLETON (D-Ward 3)
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I am Polly Shackleton, Chairwoman of the Commitiee on Human
Services of the Committee on Human Services of the Council of
the District of Columbia. I appreciate the opportunity to
appear before you once again on the subject of Saint Elizabeths
Hospital and thc development of a comprehensive mental health
system, Mr. Chairman. I have been personally involved in
discussions about this issue for more than 17 years, sinne 1969
when I was a member of the Rome Commission. I have frequently
appeared before this Committee and before Congressional
Appropriations Committees faced with difficult funding problems

in the past.

I fully support the transfer of authority to the District
Government for a comprehensive mental health system, and the
creation of a Commissibn on Mental Health within the Department
of Human Services to carry out the new responsibility. Many
of the problems which have plagued the divided system over the
years can be resolved by unifying and integrating services in

this way.

My Committee held two days of public hearings in January,
gilving a broad opportunity to professionals and interes’ed
individuals and organizations to comment on the plan. It is

clear that there is widespread support for the proposed
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organization and struciire of the Commission on Mental Health
and for the principles which gquide its emphasis on two
principal groups of clients: children and youth, and

chronically mentally ill adults.

My Committee «lso ~oted the widespread pirticipation of many

family members, professionals, and organizations in the
development of the plan. This will ensure that our system ic
designed to meet the needs of our " ulation and to achieve the

goals set by the community for mental health services.

‘ In the Resolution proposed by my Committee and rassed by the

Council on February 28, 1986, we noted several areas which
needed further atten.ion. We are particularly concerned about
patients who have a dval diaqnosis of mental retardation and
mentai illness, and about patients who are both mentally ill
and substance abusing. In both of these areas more detailed
proposals are decessary, anl I am advised that MHSRC has
established comprehensise task forces in both cases to provide
us with the information and proposals we requested. We also
requested Getailed cost and revenue C.ta in the Final Plan and
are particularly in:terested in reviewing the financing of
children's programs across the Department of Human Services and

the Public Schools.
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The District Cruncil takes.a keen interest in the development
of plans for that part of the Saint Elizabeths campus which
will not be used directly by the mental health system. The
Mayor has now established a Task Force to assist him in the
development of guidelines and proposals and we expect to review

his recommendations in the fall.

But our deepest concern relates to the possibility thatbthe
federal government will not honor its November, 1984 agreement
about the rate at which fedeval funds will be withdrawn from
this system. Already in FY 1986 the imposition of
Gramm-Rudman-Hollings cuts has removed nearly $4 million from
promised payments to the Hospital. Such arbitrary changes in
the carefully planned sequence of stepped-down payments, which
allowed an orderly shift of responsibility from the federal to
the District governments, can be very damaging to the
District's ability to manage this transition smoothly. The
process is a very complex one, and one to which a great deal

of energy and careful preparation has been given.

I strongly urge you, Mr. Chairman, to prevent any further harm
to this effort by an instructicn from Congress to the federal
executive to exempt from Gramm-Rudman-Hollings actions all
pPayments associated with this transfer of authority. The

federal appropriations to Saint Elizabeths are already
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declining at the rate of $6 million a year under the ex.sting
agreement, and will end completely within five years. To
disrupt this schedule, on which both executive branches and the
Congress agreed in 1984, is a breach of faith which will Place

the transition process in jeopardy.

We also urge your attention and support for funding the
renovation of the Saint Elizabeths facilities which will be
transferred %o the District, The federal government must not
pPass along to the District an unfinished commitment to bring
these facilities up to appropriate treatment standards --
standards that will meet the test of accreditation. Your
Committee took the lead in mandating the federal commitment to
this renovation in 1976, Mr. Chairman, and I know we caﬁ Count

On you to pursue the task until it jis Complete,

In closing, let me repeat that the District Council is
monitoring the development of this comprehensive mental health
system for our community with care and diligence. We are
satisfied that the work is proceeding on the required
timetable, and is in fu11 compliance with the mandates of P. L.
98-621 and with all applicable District statutes. We look
forward to receiving the Final Plan from the Mayor in October
of this year, and to supporting the assumption of full

responsibility in October of next year.
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Thank you for this opportunity to present our views to you this
morning. We look forward to working with you in the
implementation of a new mental health system which will meet

the goals to which we are both so strongly committed.
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Mr. FAuNnTROY. I thank you so much, Ms. Shackleton. Let me jus
raise a cm:iple of questions with you.

You held public hearings on the preliminary system implements
tion plan back in January, and you raised several concerns regard
ing the financial planning assumption that underlies Public Lay
98-621. I wonder if you'd care to enlighten the committee furthe
on the concerns you raised? ‘

SHACKLETON. Well, rincipally, we—if the funding is cut
back, in my view, there will be no way that the plan can be carrie
out as it has been put forth. It just won’t be possible, and I thinl
that’s a very serious and critical situation if that does occur.

The District has made this commitment. The Federal Govern
ment has made its commitment. The District is keeping its commit
ment, and unless the funding is available, the fuil funding, some
thing is going to have to go by the wayside. That will mean tha:
thgv%lan will not be achieved the way it should be,

ether it will be care, ggtient care, outreach, whatever, some
eming hae discussed with you simply
cannot be carried out if the funding is not available. Andy
as well as I know that the District is not going to be able to make
up the difference.’

Mr. FAuNTROY. I certainly hope, Ms. Shackleton, that as you’ve
indicated you’re going to remain active on this issue even beyond
your retirement from the council. But I certainly would hope that
you and others who have testified here will keep us abreast of the
extent to which the commitments for capital improvements out
there are being kept as we move toward the transfer date.

I must admit that the thing which perked my interest in the
Emory Lee case immediately was the prospect that perhaps the
heating system there was not bein put in the proper condition, ag
we expect it to be when it is turned over. And while that may have
been a factor in the whole situation there, I want to be sure that
we get a first-class facility, as was committed by the Federal Gov-
ernment to us when we passed this law.

So, please, keep me abreast of that, That's a request I make of ali
of those who have testified here thus far.

My second concern has to do with the use of all the real property
and buildings that will not be required. As you recall, under the
law the Mayor is required to prepare and submit to the Congress a
master plan for use of all that, and to tell us what uses we can
expect of the land not transferred as s part of the plan we are
hearing today.

I note in your testimon again on—your statement, rezlly, on
dJanuary 16, that you raisefi' certain questions concerning the direc-
tion that the plan might take. Do you care to share with us rome of
those %estions and concerns?

Ms. SHACKLETON. Well, as you may recall, in cur hearings there
were people who wanted to see that west part of the groperty used
for further patient care for residents an 80 forth. I think there
was strong testimony presented to our commitiee that did not sup-
port that concept.

- In addition, I think the people in ward 8 also had some views. I
know my colleague, Ms. Rolark, was not particularly intrigued by
that idea, and I think she expressed the view that her constituents
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in the area wanted to see some use made of that that would—that
the whole community would be able to approve of and participate
in and so forth.

We understand that there are a number of thoughts. Various
groups are looking at different proposals, and that Mr. McClinton
and his staff are studying them. We certainly will look at that
very, very carefully, because I think it's going to affect a lot of
people. It’s going to affect the community, and I think a lot of good
things can be done with that. It's a wonderful property, and I think
some very favorable programs can be developed there.

So that is something that we will want to lock at when we have
our hearing in the fall later on.

Mr. FaunTrOY. Thank you so very much, Ms. Shackleton. We do
have the proceedings of your hearings back in January.

At this point in the record, I want you to place—I want to direct
gtaff to place both Ms. Shackleton’s comments and Ms. Rolark’s
comments to which she referred in relevant part to that question.

Thank you so very much, and I appreciate not only your years of
work but your persistence and consistency on this question.

Ms. SHACKLETON. Again, my thanks to you and best wishes.

Mr. FAunTtROY. Thank you.

[The attachment to Ms. Shackleton’s statement follows:]
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/?
To

Members, Committee on Human Services

From POLLY SHACKLETON, Chairperson, Committee on Human Services

Date February 11, 1986

Subjec!(:omittee Report on PR 6-288, the "Preliminary System Implementation

Plan for a Comprehensive District Mental Heolth System
Recormendation Resolution of 1986,.*

The Cormittee on Human Setvices, to which PR 6-288, the "Preliminary
System Implementation Plan for a District Comprehensive Mental Health System
Recommendation Resolution of 1986," was referred, reports in favor of the
bill and accompanying report and recommends their adoption by the Oouncil of
the District of Columbhia.

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY

January 3, 1986 PR 6-288 is introduced by Chairman
Clarke at the recuest of the Mayor.

January 3, 1986 PR 6-288 is referred to the Committee
on Buman Services.

January 16 and 17, 1986 Public Hearings on PR 6~288 by the
Committee on Human Services.

February 11, 1986 Consideration and mark-up of PR 6-288
by the Cormmittee on Human Services.

Background and Purpose

Years of intense debate about the governance of St, Elizabeths Hospital
cilminated in late 1984 with passage of P.L. 98-621, the "St. Elizabeths
Hospital and District of Columbia Mental Health Services Act,® in which
Congress mandated that the District take over the federal hospital
responsibility &nd create a comprehensive, coordinated, and community-based
system over a six-year period. The Mayor created the Mental Health System
Reorganization Office ("MHSRO™) within the Department of Human Services to
carry out the complex planning process which this reorganization requires.
The Preliminary System Implementation Plan (*Plan") was developed in
conjunction with over 400 persons, including families of the mentally ill,
advocates, clients, and professionals.
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P.L. 98-621 requires the Council to review the Plan and transmit written
recommendations to the Mayor regarding any revisions within 60 days. The
Mayor must then submit a revised preliminary plan to the Congressional
oversight committees for review. ‘he law also requires that a final sSystem
implemention plan in the form of a reorganization plan be submitted to the
Oouncil on October 1, 1986.

. The Committee on Human Services has reviewed the Plan and testimony of
government and public witnesses carefully. We commend the Executive,
particularly the Mental Health Services Reorganization Office under the
leadership of virginia Fleming, for coordinating diverse professional and
comunitv views and producing such a comprehensive plan. The Cormittee print
of PR 6.288 reflects the reconmended revisions to the Plan which are discussed
below.

In addition, the Committee has a number of general comments on the Plan

“and its financing. We support the establishment of a separate Commission on

Mental Health and urge the Mayor to begin recruiting the leadership necessary
to assure a successful transition immediately, although the Commission will
not be formally established until the Oouncil has completed its review of the
final system implementation plan to be submitted October 1, 1986.

We also wish to indicate our strong support for the children's program.
The plan provides a single focus of accountability for children's mental
health services for the first time by placing them under the jurisdictior of a
single administration. It acknowledges the current shortage of programs for
youth and recommends the development of a full continuum of services with an
emphasis on early intervention and outreach. The Committee also strongly
supports the location of services for children and their families in schools,
primary health care clinics, and churches.. We are especially pleased that the
needs of children at risk of being neglected have been addressed. The
implementation of these plans, with the goal of reaching 2,200 children and
their families in fiscal 1988 and scme 6,700 by fiscal 1991, will require botn
a major commitment of resources and a level cf interagency cooperation beyond
that which the District‘’s youth-serving agencies have demonstrated to date.
The Committee is hopeful that the cuoperation among public and private
agencies evident in the planning effort can be sustained,

The succens of the unified system -epends on full funding during the
transition period through fiscal year 1991. The fedesal government must honor
the agreement reached when P.L. 98-621 was enacted regarding the shared
responsibility for funding the mental health system during the transition
period. Both the DHHS appropriation to St. Elizabeths and the special
transition subsidy are wulnerable to Gram-Rudman-Hollings cuts. Without
:;;1!1 federal funding the city will be ynable to accept full responsibility for

system.

. The District government hags made 2 tremendous commitment to increase
funding for the new system during the transition period and in futyre years.
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According to information supplied during the hearing, the net District cost
will increase as follows (in millions):

FY 87 FY 88 FY 89 Sy 90 FY 91
IS 733 ¥B93 41003 FIILs

Lack of budget detail in the Plan makes it irpossible to evaluate the proposed
system's financial feasibility. The Committec is particularly concerned that
the plan appears to propose a no—growth budget from fiscal years 1987 through
1991, The out-year figures are based on assumptions regarding economies that
may not be achievable; and, therefore, proposals to deliver services for twice
as many adults and five times more children and families than are currently

served seem unrealistic.

The Cormittee supports the Mayor's position on seeking continued federal
support for capital funds necessary to complete the east side renovation
vrogran bequn a decade ago and for the NIMH pre-service training programs
which have made such an important contribution to the quality of public and
minority psychiatry nationwide. Although an additional $44 million is
required to camplete renovation of patient-care buildings, only $10 million of
the original appropriation remains. The federal govermment is responsible for
assuring that the hospital complies with code and accreditation requiremente
and meets reasonable efficiency standards. The District can only accept
responsibility for the national institution if the federal govarnment meets
this responsibility.

The plan anticipates that about 700 persons will need supervised or
supported housing in the community by fiscal year 1931: 300 Dixor. class
patients currently at St. Elizabeths; 200 mentally ill homeless persons
needing organized group programs; and 200 previously independent or in-family
patients now needing supported homes. The Plan recognizes that neighborhood
acceptance of new residential programs is limited in the District,
particularly with other court-mandated classes being placed in commnities
with limited housing stock. It notes, however, that there are s urrently about
200 vacant beds in existing commnity residence facilities (CRFs) that can be
utilized and emphasizes alternatives to CRFs such as supervised apartments and
foster care. The Committee received testimony from several non-profit groups
that have had considerable success placing chronically ill patients in private
apartment stock (with 24-hour support available for crises) because landlords
are eager to have rent quaranteed. The Cormittee believes that community
support will have to be carefully developed if this ambitious plan is to be
realized. Since the system depends on the savings generated by the lower cost
of community care, it is important that these goals be met.

We recormend that the Mayor make the following revisions to the plan
before submitting it to the Congressional oversight committees:

1. P.L. 98-62]1 mandates that the Mayor propose a land use plan on or
befcze October 1, 1991, for those portions of the St. Elizabeths campus that

-4
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are not needed for purposes related to mental health or human services. This
plan requires input from appropriate local, regional, and national
authorities, and Congress must enact it before the transfer of any property
rights. Our Committee is concerned about the lack of specificity in the plan
and asked the Executive for more details about the process the Mayor to use in
developing possible alternative uses for the West Side. In his testimony, Mr.
David Rivers, Director of DHS, indicated that the Executive plans to develop
specific land-use criteria and to solicit bids for the proposed uses with the
expectation that preliminary recommendations will be prepared for the Mayor's
consideration by fall. Chairperscn Shackleton emphasized the importance of
designing a process to solicit community input into these decisions. She
asked for and received a commitment that a public hearing will be held. The
Committee emphasizes the importance of the west side deliberations being open
to all interested persons.

Two important issues surfaced at the Committee's hearings regarding the
use Oof the west side. Pirst, the possible use of the land fsr “transitional®
living arrangements for patients was suggested. While not ruling out some
patient uses, the Cormittee joins the Mental Heal*h Law Project and others in
cautioning that living arrangemerts on the grounds of the state mental
hospital for patients eligible for outplacement under the Dixon decree would
not meet the Court's mandate. And second, some observers have suggested that
if the West side is sold or developed, the proceeds, or some portion thereof,
shoyld be held in trust for the mental health system. W%hile the Committee
strongly supports full funding for the new unified system, it does not support
dedicating revenues.

2. The Committee is seriously concerned about the proposed 150-bed
facility for mentally retarded clients at St. Elizabeths. The planning to /
date for these persons has been inadequate. We join the D.C. Association for
Retarded Citizens in urging that the Mental Health Services Reorganization
Office establish a planning group immediately to advise it on conducting a
review of the diverse needs of these clients and on the design of appropriate
_programs,

3. The Cormittee believes that the Executive should include the Alcohol ?
and Drug Atuse Administration (ADASA) in the proposed Commission on Mental
Health. Clearly many mentally ill individuals suffer from alcoholism or other
substance abuse. Frequently, mentally ill substance abusers are among the
most dangerous mentally ill and the long-term mental health problems caused by
PCP will certainly continue to require special programs. Including ADASA in
the new Commission see's the best way to assure proper coordination of these
programs.

4. The Cormittee has some concerns about plans to have the Adult Services
Administration provide outpatient services to mentally ill clients who are
conditionally released from the criminal justice system. while linking some
forensic clients to commnity mental health services will be appropriate, the
judiciary must have a high degree of confidence in the follow-up services for
these persons if they are to grant timely releases. Some capacity ‘should be

“4
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maintained in the Forensic Services Administration for clients requiring
specialized outpatient services.

5. Efforts to serve the homeless mentally ill (and to prevent chronically
111 persons living in the community from becoming homeless) rest with adequate
crisis resolution and outreach services. Although the plan makes provision
for these services, we have reservations about the proposed 1:40 staff/client
case management ratio, particularly for clients who are experiencing
difficulty in the community. The District also has a responsibility to assist
homeless persons in obtaining benefits to which they are entitled. Accessing
benefits is important for system revenues as well as individual clients, since
all SSI racipients are automatically eligible for Medicaid, and Veteran's
benefits often provide disability payments and health benefits if the
disability can be established as service related. The Committee is aware that
the Health Care for the Homeless Project has been successful in designing an
S$SI project and in obtaining a commitment from the Veteran's Administration to
research the service history of each homeless person brought to their
attention and to provide the necessary forms to project staff. The District
should aggressively follow through on these efforts with respect to all
homeless individuals and families.

6. The abjlity of the Department of Human Services' support services to
handle such an enormous system and the impact of the reorganization on other
District agencies must be carefully examined. ‘he Cormittee would like to see
these questions addressed in the final system implementation plan. We are
particularly concerned about how procurement, budgeting, and other Ssupport
functions will be handled for the hospital. What impact will there be on the
DHS Personnel Cluster, the Department of Administrative Services, and other
affected agencies? The Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs will
require additional resources by fiscal year 1988 to regulate additional
community-based residential facilities. To the extent that new regulatory and
financing mechanisms must be established or current law amended, the Oouncil
urges that the necessary legislative proposals be forwarded as soon as
possible.

7. The Committee expects to receive a detailed budget proposal as part of
the final system implementation plan to be submitted October 1, 1986. Both
revenue and cost assumptions must be developed in detail. Policy changes
which would maximize Medicaid revenue should be carefully analyzed before
development of the revenue budget.

8. The Committee believes that the preposal to transfer funds to other
administrations within the Department of Human Services ($6,000,000 to the
Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities Administration and
$5,000,000 to the Long Temm Care Administration) does not assure adequate
control of programs and funds by the mental health system. Hany patients need
nursing home care or special programming designed for dusl diagnoses, however
transferring these funds and the responsibility for the care of these patients
to other administrations could force mentally ill clients to compete with
other pressing needs and create serious continuity-of-care issues should these
clients require acute mental health services at a future date. If:.'the
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operation of discrete programs by another administration seems appropriate,
intradistrict sales agreements could be executed, We have gimilar concerns
regarding the proposed transfer of $20,500,000 to the Department of Pyblic
Works unless its responsibilities are spelled out in detail,

9. There are a variety of complex financing issues surrounding the
children and youth services budget due to the multi-million dollar resources
for mental health and related services that are currently located in the
Commission on Social Services' and D.C. Public Schools® budzet. Discussions
among the D.C. Public Schools, DHS, and the courts regarding responsibjlity
for serving emotionally disturbed youth who are not considered educationally
hardicapped under p.L. 94~142 have pProven inconclusive, Issues of financial
responsibility and budget and program authority must be resolved, particularly
since the Plan proposes the development of residential service capacity in the
T4 1d/Youth Services Administration of the mental health Sygtem.

10. The success of the new system will depend on ity gtaff and their
ability to carry out new job descriptions. We understand that the MHSRO has
developed proposed staffing pattemns which are currently being revieweq,
Closure on these issues is essential to further planming. The Plan makes a
comitment to staff development, including in-gervice training and the
retraining necessary to assure the success Of the transition. The Comm{ ttee
expects the training budget to be spelled our in the final system
implementation plan.

Section-by-section Amuzsis

Section 2 stateg the Council's findings concerning the process of Mayoral
submission and Council review of the Preliminary system implementation plan
pursuant to P.L. 98-621,

Section 3 expresses the Council's recommendations regarding revisions to
the preliminary system implementation plan and expectations for the final
system implemenation plan to be sulmitted to the council on Octoker 1, 1986,

Section 4 requires the (ouncil to transmit a copy of PR 6-288 to the
Mayor upon adoption,

Section 5 is the offective date Provision,

Impact on Existing raw

PR 6-268 is {n conformance with the Provigjons of P.L. 98-621 which
requires that the Mayor submit to the ooumci] a Preliminary System
Inplerentation Plan and that the Council review tpe plan znd transmit written
recomendations to the Mayor within 60 days.

Piscal Impact

The preliminary plan has no fiscal impact per se, however, finanoing ¢he
mental health system during the transition Per% and in the future'w!l}
require the District government to significanny increase the porticn or
mental health services funded by local sources, The Comittee reraine
concerned about the assumption of no real growth in total system cost d.iring
the transition period,
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Mr. FaunTtroY. We're going to ask our next panel, Dr. Steven
Sharfstein, the deputy medical director of the American Psychiat-
ric Association, and Dr. William Carr, of the District of Columbia
Psychological Association and the American Psychological Associa-
tion, to come.

Gentlemen, I have to move on to a funeral which I must attend.
I'm a little late for it, but I must go; and I'm going to ask if the
staff would conduct the hearings at this pcint until I can return.

Thank you.

TESTIMONY OF STEVEN S. SHARFSTEIN, M.D., DEPUTY MEDICAL
DIRECTOR, AMERICAN PSYCHIATRIC ASSOCIATION

Dr. SHARFSTEIN. We'll miss you, Mr. Chairman.

My name is Steven Sharfstein, and—-

S Mr. Wius. I don’t know whether to say thank you or not,
toven. -

Mr. SHARFSTEIN. We're glad you're here, Ron. I am deputy medi-
cal director of the American Psychiatric Association, a medical spe-
ciality society representing over 32,000 psychiatrists nationwide.

I appreciate very much this opportunity to comment on the Dis-
trict of Columbia’s mental health preliminary system implementa-
tion plan. In my statement, I associate myself with the views and
recommendations of the Washington Psychiatric Society, its D.C.
chapter, and the Physicians Association of St. Elizabeths Hospital,
particularly with respect to plan implementation at the local level.

I will abbreviate my remarks. You have the complete comments
for the record. A

At the outset I want the committee to know that I feel there are
many positive aspects to the District’s plan. I will focus my re-
marks, however, on where the plan is weak or overly ambitious,
with the hope of changing it and ameliorating the deficiencies in it.

For purposes of providing you with a summary of our recommen-
dations, they are as follows:

There is a need for, first, stated guiding principles to aid develop-
ment of a high quality and comprehensive system of care; second,
continued asylum at the hospital for some chronic patients.

Third, pilot projects with D.C. community hospitals to test the
feasibility of shifting patients to these facilities. Fourth, adequate
insurance coverage of mental disorders in the District. Fifth, at-
traction and retention of capable and committed physicians. Sixth,
a merging of alcohol and drug abuse services into the mental
health commission.

Seventh, continuad stable fiscal support for research and train-
ing programs at the hospital. Eighth, special attention to the urban
homeless. Ninth, a moratorium on the planning for the west side of
the hospital grounds. .

With the signing of the law, Public Law 98-621, and the estab-
lishment of the District’'s Mental Health System Reorganization
Office, an important initial step has been reached in the develop-
ment of the unified system. Through our representatives to that
office, we continue and look forward to continue to work for the
development of a plan responsive to the intent of Congress, and I
quote, which is to quote:

-ty
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* * * develop a comprehensive mental health care system includiig hign juality,
cost effective, community-based programs and facilities; inpatien! and outpatient
programs; residential treatment programs; and support services, all of which guar-
antee the protection of patient rights and medical needs.

We emphasize Congress’ recogrition of the importance of this
medical needs criteria, since proposed management changes are of
value only to the extent that they help the (f)atients thry serve. As
physicians, we believe that a plan designed to care for ill people
should be based on clinical criteria.

In this context the most important guiding principles facing the
commission should be: One, to enable those who are mentally il to
receive the best treatment available; and two, to ensure that those
persons whose primaiy need is for long-term care and trestment
will have access to the most appropriate treatment.

Given this framework, you must know that not all of the psychi-
atrically ill in the 1980’s can be successfully treated to where their
behavior will be completely acceptable in community settings. Ac-
cordingly, the plan should admit explicitly that some patients need
asylum, and that asylum should not be in'the streets.

While many of the very chronically mentally ill can be managed
in small group homes, others have their greatest freedom from
their illness and the consequences of their illness when they are
living on the grounds of the hospital. The St. Elizabeths grounds ig
part of a full continuum of care which will help make the commu-
nity residential facilities a success by their not having to care for
all these patients.

By having an asylum program on the grounds of St. Elizabeths,
rehabilitation programs will not be frustrated with these patients,
and the patients will not have to suffer the pains of being part of a
rehabilitation program that’s not working for them.

Asylum for some allows community care for the many.

The District’s plan speaks to the development of a full continu-
ation of culturally appropriate, community-based programs de-
signed to serve the needs of the eople of the District of Columbia.
We applaud this commitment. We remain concerned about wheth-
er the envisioned community-based system can be fully realized
within the stated timeframe.

The District’s plan itself recognizes this by stating that the po-
tential for community-based care for the chronically mentally ill
has not been fully realized because the support system which the
State hospital provides has not always been replicated in communi-
ty settings.

We urge the District to proceed carefully and to work closely
with knowledgeable medicalp professicnals at St. Elizabeths in im-
plementing this transition.

e plan envisions significantly greater reliance on adult acute
care psychiatric beds in seven Washington community hospitals
without providing any evidence that these units want to agsume re-
sponsibility for the very dangerous or the very disabled patients
that constitute many of St. Elizabeths’ admissions.

The District acknowledges in its report that “the exact number
of non-St. Elizabeths Hospital psychiatric beds is difficult to deter-
mine”’ and, more importantly, that “private providers may lack in-
terest or skills in treating tﬁe most destitute and chronically ill.”

84



79

These appropriate limitations make proper planning and evalua-
tion critical. i ]

Even if the psychiatric units are willing, the plan appears to call
for discontinuity of patients crossing back and forth between public
and private sectors. We agree then with the physician staff of the
hospital, of St. Elizabeths, that contracting for acute inpatient psy-
chiatric treatment should be piloted first to iron out some of these
difficulties before it is replicated on a massive scale.

It is estimated that 450,000 citizens in the District have some
form of health insurance. With few exceptions, the coverage of psy-
chiatric services in those plans is very inadequate. We feel the plan
should speak in favor of requiring adequate insurance coverage for
District citizens who have -mental illness.

It is unconscionable, we feel, for the District’s plan to be silent
on this discrimination. The commission of menial health should
regard it as his or her responsibility to pursue satisfactory mental
{)19alth coverage in health insurance plans in the District of Coluni-

ia.

A major assumption on the part of the District is that many pa-
tients who presently reside at St. Elizabeths might be able to live
in less restrictive settings such as the District licensed community
residential facilities or CRF’s. We urge the District to proceed cau-
tiously on expanding the use of CRF’s.

It is important that CRF’s be used like any other major treat-
ment approach, with the uses, cautions, contraindications explicitly
established. For some patients, CRF’s provide the appropriate least
restrictive setting. For other-more disabled or more dangerous pa-
tients, the skills and structure of a CRF are too limited. Besides
protectmg the patients, careful use of CRF’s will help forestall ccm-
munity opposition to their development.

A recognition that some severely chronically ill patients need the
esylum of St. Elizabeths helps make CRF’s a success by not placing
those patients in those facilities. Otherwise, we feel that the pa-
tiqnts, the public, and the mental health system suffer a false opti-
mism.

Over 100 psychiatrists at St. Elizabeths, the majority of whom
are board certified, have made great contributions to patient care,
research and training at the hospital. The plan should respect the
judgments of concerned and knowledgeable clinicians about the
needs of these patients—of their patients—and retain these clini-
cians in the new system.

No physician has assurance that he or she will have a position in
tl.e new system. More needs to be said about the staffing patterns
and about inducements to attract and retain well trained and well
motivated clinicians.

We would recommend further that a clear accountability be as-
sured for each patient for adequate psychiatric diagnosis, care and
treatment. Both to serve more patients with fewer staff and to
serve more patients in an outpatient setting requires greater skills
from clinicians. Under such circumstances, it is important that
each patient have a complete evaluation by a psychiatrist and an
;_nd&lwdual treatment plan that is consistent with the psychiatrist’s

indings
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To achieve this goal, there should be adequate psychiatric staff-
ing and monitoring. The plan perceives the address and length of
patient stay as important characteristics in determining program-
matic decisions. Diagnosis and treatment goals that clinicians have
for patients are not mentioned in the plan. The pian emphasizes
level of care needed along functional lines rather than level of care
based on diagnosis and clinical needs.

Although functional status and disease relate, it is difficult, if
not impossible, to prescribe a care plan without both. Many pa-
tients need highly specialized care and treatment, since they have
illnesses that, as a rule, will respond poor to less specialized treat-
ment. :

In addition, while the plan speaks of the importance of an inte-
grative approach, it removes from a single commission those who
suffer from the largest single admission category, alcoholism. It re-
moves those mentally ill with substance abuse, the most dangerous
of the mentally ill, and leaves them in a separate commission.

We believe that the Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Services Admin-
istration should be part of the commission on mental health.
Anyone serving patie.ts admitte¢ o public psychiatric programs
krows that many patients have zlcoholism and substance abuse
along with other psychiatzic ilincrses. It does not make clinical
sense and less administrative s«nse to have responsibility for these
patients in two separate commissions. It would be difficult to imag-
ine that coordination between ihese two commissions will ade-
quately serve these patients.

During our appearance before the Congress prior to enactment of
Public Law 98-621, we stressed the importance of both Federal and
District government support for clinical psychiatric research and
related federally supported patient services, as well as professional
clinical training. A combined Federal and District investment in
*hese ongoing research, service and training programs will increase
ihe city’s capacity to develop greater knowledge about mental ill-
ness and to facilitate growth of treatment programs, especially
treatment programs for the most severely ill.

Consistent with the requirements of Public Law 98-621, special
attention should be devoted to the urban homeless. This is needed
to learn how the psychiatrically ill can avoid becoming part of the
city’s homeless population. These problems are nationwide in scope
and should be resolved with continued Federal support for research
and training.

There needs to be a focus upon clinical research and training
that will prevent the mentally ill from becoming abandoned on our
city streets. We look forward to receiving more information on the
District’s commitment to these important activities. Moreover, we
would welcome suggestions about continued Federal support of re-
search and training.

We agree with the Mayor’s letter to Congress calling for Federal
support of training. There is a need for congressional support
of training. In Public Law 98-621, Congress call -for con-
tinued Federal support of training. Training at St. Elizabeths has
been a Federsl magnet that has attracted high quality staff, has
attracted minority trainees in unusually large numbers, has at-
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tracted people who have become hospital, local and national
mental health leaders.

Federal support of ‘raining has been a conduit and catalyst for
current and innovative treatment for the mentally ill. Saint Eliza-
beths’ training programs have enhanced the knowledge and skill of
every clinician who serves any of the hospital’s patients. Relative
to innovative approaches, training at St. Elizabeths in establishing
new psychotherapeutic treatments in the 1940’s, in understanding
new psychopharmacological therapies in the 1950’s, in developing
community psychiatric programs in the 1960’s, in comprehending
new diagnostic entities in the 1970’s, and in expanding outreach
psychiatric services to the homeless in the 1980’s.

This Federal legacy has been a key element in St. Elizabeths’
gense of pride and worth. At a cost of only $5 m:llion annually, this
Federal legacy can continue as an expression of congressional wish
that the Nation’s Capital’s most dangerous, most disturbed and
most disabled mentally ill receive the highest quality services.

Finally, a major resource for the mentally ill for the past 131
years in the District of Columbia has been St. Elizabeths grounds.
Such a resource should remain available to the mentally ill untii it
has been proven that it is not needed. We have no quarrel with the
concept of having the hospital only occupy the east side, but other
nonhospital programs may be needed on the west side.

Nonhospital needs, asylum programs, group home programs,
shelter workshops, recreational programs could all become impor-
tant elements for the mental health system in the 1990’s, programs
that could logically be placed on the west side of the grounds. It
would be tragic to throw away a major resource.

Therefore, we propose a moratorium on any plan for the develop-
ment of the west side until other crucial issues are resolved, includ-
ing patient placement throughout the Disirict of Columkia.

We appreciate this opporiunity to comment on the plan, look for-
ward to working with the District of Columbia und the ¥edural
Government during this transition period.

Thank you.

Mr. WiLLis. Thank you, Dr. Sharfsiein.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Sharfstein follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, I am Steven S. Sharfstela, M.D., Deputy Medical pirector of
the American Psychiatric Assoclatic:.. a mesical specialty society representing
over 32,000 psychiatrists nationwide. I appreciate this opportunity to
comnent on the District of Coluwoia's Mental Health Preliminary System )
Implementation Plan. 1In my statement, I will also associate myself with the
views and recommendations of the Washington Psychiatric Society and the
Physicians Association of saint Elizabeths Hospital, particularly with respect
to plan implementation at the local lavel.

At the ondet I want the Committee to know that there are many positive
aspects to the District's plan. I will focus my remarks, however, on where
the plan is weak or overly ambitious, with the hope of ameliorating the
perceived deficiancies. Por the purpose of providing you with a summary of

ouz recommendations, they are ag follows. There exists a need for:s

9  stated guiding principles to aid development of a
high quality ana comprehensive gystem of care;

©  centinued agylur at the Hospital for some chronic
patients;

o pilot proj-cts with D.C. community hospitals to test
Zeauibility of patient shifte;

° adequate insurance coverage of mental disorders in
the District :

©  attraction znd retention of capable and committed
physiciang;

° a werging of alcohol and dru3d abuse services into the
Mental H=alth Commission;

© * continued ytable fiscal support of research and
training programa;

o special attention to the urban homelesas;

o

appropriate utilization of the Hoepital grounds.

I would now like to elaborate on these points ang emphasize the issues of

rational significance which, in the APA's judgment, are critical to the design

R
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and implementation ¥ a compre..ensive mental health system, incluaing saint
Elizabeths Hospitai, for the r-sidents of the District of Columbia. As you
know, this hospital's contribution to the care and *reatment of its
psychiatric patisnts has been exemplary in comparison to many other public
psychiatric hospitals and hence, the statutorily~requirea transfer of the
Hospital to the Diustrict wust be planned in such a way to assure that the care
and treatment of psychistric patients is enhanced, not harmed.

A8 stazted ducing my two appearances in 1984 before your Committee, the
APA believe that the test of any acceptable resolution to the problems facing
Saint Elizabeths Hospital, should, in our view, be based on the following

consideratioans:

the availability in the District of Columbia of a
full range of services -- both hospital and
camunity-based -~ appropriate to the needs of the
city's mentally ills

9  ¢ie quality of these services at no less than the
current best capability of the mental health field;

O  service provision through a unified delivery system
with upwardly converging lines of professional and
managerial accountability;

O  ready and flexible access by patients to different
combinations of services as their changing clinical
and gocial status may require; and

o

flexible deployment of staff, and emphasis on
continuity of care consistent with individual
treatment plans.

#ith the signing into law of the Saint Elizabeths Hospital and District
of Columbia Mental Health Services Act (P.L. 98-621) and the establishment of,
the District's Mental Health System Reorganization Office, an important
injtial step has been reached in the development of a unified system. Through

APA's representatives to that Office, we will continue to work for the

-2~

30



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

85

development of a plan responsive to the intent of ongress, e.g.

"that the District of Columbia have in operation no later
than October 1, 1991, a comprehensive mental health care
system which includes high quality, cost-effective
community-based programs and facilitiesj inpatient ana
outpatient care programs; residential treatment programs;
and support services, all of which will guaruntee the
protection of patient rights and medical needs.®

We emphasize Congress' recognition of the importance of this "medical

needs® criteria, since proposed management changes are of value only to the

extent that they help the-patientas they serve. As physicians we believe that

a plan designed to care for ill people should be based on clinical criteria.

In the May 1986 edition of Hospital and Community Psychiatry, Leona L.

Bachrach, Ph.D. discusses one loci of "medical needs" care which is appropo of

the pending matter, as follows:

“Although the program needs of individual chronic mental
patients vary considerably, many of these patients
require long-term care, often in structurea service
settings. They often need a vast array of residential,
treatment, and transportation services that zay only be
described as total care. However, because state mental
hospitals have frequently been emasculated or even
totally destroyed before a sufficient array of community
services has been assured, the problems of providing
needed care -- at least on & nationwide basiy -~ appear
to outweigh service syatems at the present time. The
simple fact is that there is often no place in our systom
for patients who are seriously ill and in desperate need
of treatment.”

She concludes that "far from being moribund facility, the state mental
hospital will continue to occupy an important niche in the psychiatric service
system 80 long as it aupplies unique services to chronic mental patients -
services that they need but do not receive elsewhere.”

In this context the most important guiding principles facing the
Cc'mission muat be (1) to enable those who are mentally ill to receive the

-3-
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best treatment available and (2) to ensure that those persons whose primary
neea is for long~term care and treatment will have access to the most
appropriate treatment facilities. Given this framework, you must know that
not all of the psychiatrically ill in the 1980°'s can be successfully treated
to where their behavior will be acceptable in community settingus.
Accordingly, the plan should admit that some patients need ar asylum and that
asylum should not be in the streets. Wwhile many of the very chronically
mentally ill can be managed in small group homes, others will have their
greatest treedom from their illness and the consequences of their illnesd when
they are living on the grounds of Saint Blizabeths. The Saint Elizabetha
grounds is part of the full continuum of care which will help make community
residential facilities a success by their not having to care for such
patients. 8y having an asylum program on the grounds of Saint Elizabeths,
rehabilitation programs will not be frustrated with these patients and the
patients will not have to suffer of the pains of being part of the
rehabilitation programs that are not working for them.

Tne District's plan speaks to the development of a full continuation of
culturally appropriate, community-hased programs designed to serve the needs
of the people of the District of Columbia. While we applaud this commitment,
we remain concerned about whether the envisioned compunity-based system can be
fully realized within the statec time frame. The District’'s plan itself
recognizes this stating, “the potential for community-based care for the
chronically mentally ill has not yet been fully realized" because "the support
system which the state hospital provides . . . has not always been replicated
in community settings.™ We urge the District to proceed carefully and to work
closely with the knowledgeable medical professionals at Saint Elizabeths in

implementing this transition.

-4~
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The District plan envisions significantly greater reliance on adult acute
psychiatric beds in seven Washington community hospitals without proviaing any
evigence tnat the psychiatric units of community hospitals in the District
will want to assume responsibility for the very dangerous or the quite
disablea patients that constitute many of Saint Elizabeths' admissions. The
District acknowledges in ity report that "the exact number of non-Saint
Elizabeths Hospital psychiatric bed. in difficult to determine® and more
importantly that "private providers may lack interest or skills in treating
the most destitute and chronically i11." These limitations make proper
planning and eveluation critical. Even if the psychiatric units are willing,
the plan appears to call for discontinuity of patients crossing back and forth

between the public and private sectors. We agree with the physician staff of

Saint Elizabeths Hospital that contracting for acute inpatient psychiatric

treatment should be piloted first to iron out some of the difficulties before

it is replicated on a massive scale.

It is estimatea that 450,000 citizens in the District of Columbia have
some form of health insurance. With very few exceptions, the coverage of

psychiatric services in those plans is inadequate. We feel the plan should

speak in favor of requiring adequate insurance coversge for District citizens

who have mental illness. It is unconscionable for the District's plan to be

silent on %.is discrimination. The Commissioner on Mental Health shoula
regard it as his or her responsibility to pursue satisfactory mental health
coverage in health insurance plans in the District of Columbia.

A major assumption on the part of the District is that many patients who
presently reside at Suint Elizabeths might be able to live in "less
restrictive settings® such as District-licensed Community Residential

Facilities (CRP) and supported apartment programs vwhile they receive

-5-
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treatnent. We urge tne District to proceed cautiously on expanding tne use of

CRFs. It is important that CRPs be used like any other major treatment
approach, i.e. that the uses, cautions and contraindications be established.
For some patients, CRFs provide the least restrictive setting. For other more
disabled or more dangerous patients, the gkillas and structure of a CR? are too
limited. Besides protecting tne patients, careful uge of CRFg will help
forestall community opposition to the development of CRFs. A recognition that
some severely chronically i1l patients neea the asylum of Saint Elizabeths
grounds helps make CRFs a success by not placing those patients in CRPs.
Otherwise, we feel that the patients, the public and the mental health sys:cem
will suffer from a false optimism.

The over 100 psychiatrists, at Saint Elizabeths Hoaspital, the majority of
whom are Booard certified, have made great contributions to patient care,
research and training at the Hoaspital. The plan should respect the judgmentas

of concerned and knowledgable clinicians about the needs of their patients and

retain these clinicians in tba.Nw System. No physician has assurance that he

or she will have a position under the new system. More needs to be gaid about
statfing patterns and about inducements to attract and retain well trained and
well motivated clinicians.

We would recommend clearer accountability that assures that each patient
has adequate psychiatric care and treatment. Both to serve moie patients with
fewer staff and to gerve more patients in an outpatient setting requires more
skill on the part of clinicians. Under such circumstances it is impcctant

that each patient have a complete evaluation by a psychiatrist and an

individual treatment plan that is consistent with the paychiatrist's

findings. To achieve this goal there must be adequate psychiatric staffing

and monitoring. T%s plan perceives address and length of inpatient stay as
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important characteristics in determining programmatic decisions. Diagnosis
anda treatment goals that cliniclans have for patients are not mentioned in the
plan. The plan emphasizes level of care needed along tunctional lines rather
than level of care based on clinical needs. Although fqnctional status ana
disease relate, it is aifficult if not impossible to prescribe a care plan
without both. Many patients need highly specialized care and treatment since
they have illnesses that as a rule w/ll respond poor to less tpecialized
tryatment.

In adaition, while the plan speaks of the importance of the integrative
approach, it removes from a single ccemmission those who guffer from the
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